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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholder of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO
Report an the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 5tatements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the
‘Company” or the “Parent company”) and its subsidianes (collectively referred to as the “Group™,
which comprise the consolidated staterment of financial position a5 8t 31 March 2023, and the
consclidated staternent of prafit o loss and other comprehensive income. consolidated staterment
of changes in equity and consaolidated statement of cash flows for the year than ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

In aur opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements give a frue and fair view of
the consclidated financial posibon of the Group as 8t 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
international Financial Repoding Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Awdit of the Consofidated Financial Statements saction of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Coda of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consoldated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (UAE),
and we have fulfilled our other aethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
lhe |IESBA Code. We beligve thal the audit evidence we have cbitained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinian,

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention fo note 4 (g) to the consalidated financial statements, which states that the Group
has incurred a loss of AED 11,397 782 for the year ended 31 March 2023 and ai that date, the
Group's Iosses aggregated 1o AED 12 148 473, Further, certain subsidiaries of the Group have
accumulated losses and net deficit in thesr equity funds. These events or conditions, indicate that a
material uncertainty axists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concam. However, the shareholder has agreed to continue with the operations of the Group
ard has agreed to provide continuing financial support 1o enable the Group to discharge its
llabilities as and when they fall due Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have
bean prepared on a going concern basis. Our apinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

contimued.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemance for the Consolidated
Financial Staterments

Managerment is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financlal statements that give
a frue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliznce with applicable provision
of the Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021, and for such internal cantrol as
management delermines I necessary to enable the preparation of the consalidated financial
statements that are free from materal misstalement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for agsassing ihe
Group's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management eithar intands to
iquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but io do so

Thase charged with governance are responsele fos overseging the Group's financial reporting
PrOCRES,

Auditor's Responsibdities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the conscéidated financial
staterments as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to frawd o errer, and to
issUe an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Ressonakle assurance is & high level of
assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will atways
defect a material misstaternent when it exisls. Misstatements can arise from fravd of error and are
considered material i individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financisl
slalements.

Az part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We alsa

* ldentify Bnd assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Fnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or ermor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit avidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our gpinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
amessions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal cortral,

= Qbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auwdi
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanees, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the sppropriateness of accounting policies used and the ressonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managament,

coniinyed. .
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cidained, whather a malefial uncertainty axists
related fo events or conditions that may cast significent doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are
requirad to draw aitention in our auditor's report o the refated disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inedequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
Hewever, future events or conditions may cause tha Group to cease to continue 85 & going
concem

» Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial
slatements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
reprasent the underlying transacbons and avenis in a manner that gives a true and fair view

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
staterments. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain sobaly responsible far cur audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the awdii and significant awdil findings. including any significant
deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We further confirm that the congolidated financial statements comply with the spplicable
provisions of the Dubai Airpart Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021

For PHF

s
5. Labwani

Partner

Registraton Mo, 5468
Dubai

United Arab Emirates
22 May 2023
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

ASSETS
Mon-currant asseis

Property, plant and equipment
Investment

Ckher financial assets

Current assats

Imventaries

Trade and other recelvables
Oilkver cusrant aseats

Due from a related party
Lomract assats

Other financial sasets

Cash and cash aguivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's funds

Shar= capital

Shane premium

share application mansy

Statulory raserve

Accumulated losses

Feraign curmency transiation reserve
Equity attributable to shareholder of the Parent
Mon-contralling interest

Total s harsholder's funds

Mon-current liabilities

Lo@ns from shareholdar

Long-term borrowings

Provision for staff end-of-esrvice benefits

Current llabilitles

Loans from shanshalder
Short-term borrowings
Due to related parties
Trade and cther payables
CHher current liabdites
Coniract ligbdities

Total liabilities
Total eguity and liabilities

MNotes

8

1
12
13
14
15
10
16

17
18
k]

20

21
22

21
24
14
25
26
14

2023 2022
AED ME
30,816,554 17403 826
16,854 454 16,077,802
14 524 BET 24.BB3 674
G2 8958TH 58,365 392
4 97F 343 5 656 600
2,684 954 2431 877
4,689,403 1. 746, TES
235 444 £75.409
547,582 3,552 673
29,000 1,173,322
T anTe T.227 087
7,180,616 22063654
9,876,781 B0 428 948
18,877, 0:0:0 6,658,000
19,830,4%0 BAT 440
14,775,044 0T, 200
1,368 1,365
(12,148,473} (750,684)
_[T38,171) 69,528
38,597,050 16,082 850
155,998 153,000
38,753,086 16,235,850
17,701, 527 T.464.927
13,851,133 14,670,650
163, 587 173,720
34,722,227 22 509,297
B3, 961 16.960,134
o68, 360 723 8BRS
11,158,364 2082 848
3,502,970 9,600, 205
5641684 5836, 750
7,765 142 £ B70 897
29 401 ATH 41 683,799
61,123,705 54,193,098
&0 876, Ta1 B0 428 D45

The accompanying nates form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

The report of the independent auditor is et forth on pages 1to 3.

Approved and authonsed for issue by the shareholder on 15 May 2023 and signed on their behalf

by Ms. Shivanl Agrawal.

HMEECTOR




CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Revente

Cosl of sakes

Eross loss iproft

Other Incanme

Gain on loss of contral aver subsidiary (net)
Share of profit from associate
Adminiskative expensas

Inferest income

Finance costs

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit ar loss:

(Lossigain on translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Loss attributable to:
Shareholder of the parent
Man-contralling interesd

28

28

3l

2023 2022

AED AED
38,585,839 80,162,781
(43,484,843 (47,425,810}
(3,909,004) 2,736,871
80,776 170,162

- 2 B6T BEG

TT6,562 212,692
(7,223,236) (5,462, 760)
1,514,828 855885
(2,647,715) {3,609, 498)
{11,387,788) {2,428 66O}
(B0B,699) 128,682
(808,699) 128 682
(12,206,488) {2.289,887)
(12,206 488) {2,209.687)
112.21!5,43;& {E.EEEI,DE;J

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The report of the independent audior is set forth on pages 110 3
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
AED AED
Cash flows frem aperating activities
Loss for the year {11,387, 789) (2428 688)
Adpstrments for;
Depreciation of preperdy, plant and equipment BBT TES 323,023
Flnanios cosls 2,647,715 3,600 493
Gain on loss of control over a subsidiary (net) - (2567 BES)
Share of profit from associate (776 562) (212,802
Provision for stall end-of-service benefits 124,278 ar.7is
{8.714,573) (1.338,033)
Changes in;
= |n|.|¢n1nr|¢5 EM.:EIT (.5.44".?9'3:'
- Trade and olher receivables (283,277} (&82,700)
= Diher curent asseis 12,922,617) [474,135)
- Contract assefs 13,085,309) 12,335 562)
= Trade and other payables (6,257 329) 4,743 864
- Hher cument liabiities 4 325 5,535 588
- G-I:ll'lh"ﬂiﬂ. |iﬂh‘i|ilil:$ 1‘,555.2“ 5.?&3.&15
Stafl end-of-service benefits paid {181,158) 119,.409)
Cash {used inMgenerated fram aparafions (18,839, 835] 5,508 955
Interast paid 2,407 663) (3.522 804)
Mat cash (used in)from operating activities (21,307,498} 2,074,061
Cash fiows from investing acfivities
Payrnents for property, plant and eguipment [14,366,152) (33,168, 773)
Disposal on property, pland and eguioment 165,638
Incréase in other financal assels 11,033,128 (3,118,322
Nel mowermiants in investment in sszocate - 0,205 243
Recelpts fromipayiments to) related paries 41,861 (275 408
Met cash used in investing activities (3.125.423) (25,264, 261)
Cazh flows from financing activities
Met movernent i share prermeum - 38,704 258
Receipls from share application money 34,796 848 8,017, 200
Fecalpls fromiipayments to} refated parties B,539,242 [24 883 674)
Fepasyment of bomowings (net) [1,075.022) [1,431,147)
Transachon costs paid (T6.120) -
Receipis from loan fram third paty net) = 8,153,884
iRepayment of loan to)foan sveed fram sharehokler (nef) {6,299 625) GE4, TED
Feceipls from a related parly (net) - {1,750,143)
Receipts from a sharehoider lowards share capial (net) - 3,361,740
Met cash from firsncing activities 15,885,312 33 846 BRT
Forelgn eurrency translation difference (808, 695) 126,682
Adjustments in cash and cash equivalents on loss of control = (7.500,844)
Met increase incash and cash equivalents 10,643,703 3.284 525
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,227,087 3,842 562
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year [note 18) 17,870,780 7227 08T

The accompanying notes farm an integral par of these consolidated financial statements.

The report of 1he indepandent auditor s set forh on pages 110 3



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY

CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO {the "Company” or the "Parent company®) is a free zone
comparyy with limited liabifity incorporated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates under Implemanting
Regulation No. 1/98 issued by the Dubai Airport Free Zone Authority pursuant to Law Mo 2 of
1938 and its amendment No. (2) of 2000 and amendment Law Mo. {25) of 2000 (repealed by
Dubal Airport Free Zone Authority Company Regulation 2021). The Company was registered
on 23 May 2017 and commenced its operations since then. The registered address s 2E
MO32, Dubai Alrport Free Zone, Dubai, UAE. These consolidated financial statements includa
the operating result of branch with licansa na. 3348 and operating resuits of the subsidiaries
as mentionad in nate 1(c)

b}  The principal activities of the Parent company and its subsidiaries (note 1(c) (together referred
to as “the Group”) during the year wers solar energy systems & components frading and
power generation, transmission & distribution equipment, edectrical fitting contracting, solar
energy system instailalion, business management consuling and general zarvice and
engaged in production, assembly, distribution and management services to bulld a power
plant.

¢}  These consolidated financial stalements include the assets, labilities and the results of
cperations of the Company and its following subsidiaries:

Hame of the Country of Legal Beneficial owmarshap | Principal activity Licapgai

& ubiciary inGonporation ownershig  controlling interest Rpgistration no.
% =

Surrogfs Envire . Linltad Arab % 100% Elecirical fitting contracting and E01633

Solar Enefgy Emirates solar energy syslem installaban

Systems LLEY

CleanMax IHO Thaitand 100% 100% Businass manegemani 105551090550

{Thailand} earsailling &g
Company peraral sanecs
Limitact=
Cleanias Emergy  Thaiand 100% 10034 Prediction, aszamhly, O1OBSEDENIZT
[Thailand) G, mebibation and managermnenl
Bl ™ sarvices b build a pawear plant
Claanmas Thaitand 10045 100%% Busness management D10A5ES 163748
Erginmaring cansuling and Qeners Sarass
(Thedarnd)
Campany
Lirrsbea™

{i} The investment is made by the Company through cne of its directors, who = acting as a
nominee shareholder on bahalf of the Company. The Company does not hold any share
capital in Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC, however, it is able to exercise
control over its financlal and oparating policies by virtue of de-facto control,

(ie) Cut of 100,000 shares, 2 shares are hald by individuals as a nominee sharehalder. The
Parent company holds remaining 98,998 shares.

(i} Out of 25 000 shares, 2 shares are held by individuals as a nominee sharehaldar. The
Parent company holds remaining 24, %98 thares.

Fage B of 47



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

d}

aj

() Qut of 559 shares, 354 shares are held by one company (Asian Legal Solullons Holding
Co Ltd) as a nominee shareholder. The Parent company holds remaining 245 shares.

The parent and the ullimate parent company s Clean Max Enviro Solutions Pyl Lid., Indis.
The managament and confrol are vested with Ms. Shivani Agrawal and Mr. Kuldeap Jain,
Directors, who are Indian nationals.,

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statemenis comprise the financial statements of the Parant
company and its subsidizries for the year ended 31 March 2023, Coatral is achisved when
the Parent company is expesed, or has rights, fo variable returns from its involvemnent with
the investee and has the ability to sffect those returns through its power over the investee
Specifically, the Parent company controfs an investee if and only if the Parent company has;

= Power over the investes {i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

» Exposure, of rights, to variable returns from ite involvemant with the investes; and

= The ability fo use its power cver the investee to affect its returns.

» The contractual amangement with the cther vote holders of the investee.

« Rights arising from ather contractual agreements,

» The Parents voting rights and polential vating rights.

The Parent company re-zssesses whather or nat it controls an investee i facts and
crcumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of subsidiaries begina when the Parent company obtains contral over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent company loses control of the subsidianes.
Aseets, labilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Parent company gains control until the date the Parent company
ceases to control the subsidiaries

Profit or loss and each compenent of other comprehensive income (OC1) are atiibuted to
equity holders of the Parent company &nd to the non-controfling interests evan if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance When necessary, adjustiments are
made to the financial statemants of subsidianes to being their accounting policies inta tha line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, income snd
expensas and profit and losses resulling from intra-group fransactions are eliminated in full.

A changa in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of contral, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

Losses within & subsidiary are aftributable to the non-controlling interest even if that resuilts in
a deficit balance

Papge G of 42



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

b)

d)

8)

Thege consclidated financial statements compriee the net results of cperafions and fhe

cperating assats and liabilities of the Parent company and #s subsidiaries consolidated on a
lire-by-line basis

All material unrealised profit, where applicable on inter-company inventory/sarvices that are
purchased/availed have been aliminated,

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the
consolidated staternant of comprehensive income from the effactive date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as applicabls.

The reporting date of above-mentioned entities are 31 March,

Mon-controlling interest in the net assets of subsidiaries is identified separately from the
Farenl company's share of equity. Tha mberest of non-conirolling shareholders is the amount
of interest at initial recognition plus the non-controlfling imterests share of subseguent
changes in equity. Losses applicable to the mon-confrolling interest in excess of the non-
controlling shareholders’ interest in the subsidiares' equity are allocated against the interest
of lhe Parent company except to the extent that the non-controfling sharsholders have a
binding obiigation and is able o make an additional investment to cover the losses

LOSS OF CONTROL OF SUBSIDIARY

In previous year, CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO (the “company™) entered info a
shareholders’ agreement on 14 May 2021 and issued 250 new shares at @ price of
UsSD 24,000 per share 1o Paragon Cleantech Pyt Lid. Consequent to issue of shares, the
Parent company lost control over the company on 7 Oclobes 2021 and recognisad its
imsestment as an investment in associate al fair valua.

Following adjustmants on account of loss of control of subsidiary are accounted and

nacessary adjustments are made al appropriate places in the consolidsted financial
siatemenis

T Dgtober 2021
AED
Azsels
Property, plant and equipment {fair value) 60,796,013
Trade and other receivabies 1,495 845
Contract asseis 20,870
Cash and cash esuvalents T.500. 844
Todal assets (&) 60,813,501
Liabilities
Shor ~ term borrowinga 14,690,000
Pravision far siaff end-of-senice banalits 39,304
Trise and alher pavables 340,679
Total liabilities (B} 15,069 883
Mel assets transfarrad (C)={A)-(B) 54,743 548
Consideration recelved [{5]] -
(E} = (D} = (C} 54,743 548

Page 10 of 43



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

aj

B)

c)

T Dctober 2021
AED
Represented by:
Investment in associate (note 9
Share capital 180,000
- Fair value adjustment 15,685,200
Assets recognised (intercompany balances) 7,173,489
Adjusimants ralsting toc
Mon-conirolling interest 29,242,611
Share premaum 16,081,844
Relzined eamings (16,287 .4T5)
Total (F) 52,075,678
Gain on Ioss of control (G)=(E}~(F) 2,667,869
EASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statemenis ere prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued or adopied by the International Accounting Standards Board
{IASB) and which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2022,
and the requirements of the Dubai Airport Free Zone implementing Ragutations 2021,

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using historical cost, except for certain
assels carried at fair value

Histarscal cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acguire the asset or
cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to safisfy the liability

Fair value is the price that would be receivad to sell an aseat or paid to transfer a ligbility in
an orderly trangaction betwean markst participants at the measurement date.

Going concemn
The consolidated financial staterments are prepared on a going concarn basis.

When praparing the consolidated financial statements, management makes an assessment
of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Consclidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concemn basis unless management eithar intends to liguidate the Group
or I cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do s0.
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d)

The Group has incurred a loss of AED 11,397,789 for the year ended 31 March 2023 and at
that date, the Group's losses aggregated fo AED 12 148 473 Further, the following
subsidiaries of the Group have accumulated losses and net deficit in thelr equity funds:

Sunrgofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC incwred a loss of AED 6.470,288 for the
vaar anded 31 March 2023 and at that date, the asccumulated losses amounted fo
AED 14,442 433, ite currant liabilities exceeded its current assets by AED 14,082 235
and had a net deficit of AED 14,141 067 in equity funds

CleanMax IHQ (Thailand) Company limited incurred a loss of AED 31,784 for the year
ended 31 March 2023, and &t that date, the accumulated losses amounted io
AED 2 477,485 and it had a net deficit of AED 1,400, 745 in equity funds.

CleanMax Energy (Thaftand) Co Hd. Limited at that date, the sccumulated iosses
amounted to AED 272 B89,
Lleanmax Engineering Thaifand Co. Lid incurred & loss of AED 844 004 for the year
ended 31 March 2023, and at that rate date, the accumulated kosses amountad to
AED 544,004, its current liabilites exceeded 45 curment assels by AED 869 951 and had &
net deficit of AED B85 861,

These evenis or condiions, indicate thal a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. However, thase
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concermn basis, since the
shareholder has agreed to continue with the operations of the Group and to provide
continuing financial support to enable the Group to discharge its liabilities as and when they
fall due.

Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards

Standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations effective for the current year
The following amendmaents, improvements and interpretations which Became effestive for
current penad, did not have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements;

« Property, Plant and Equipment; Procesds before intended use = Amendments to 145 1
s Reference to tha Concaptual Framework — Amendments o IFRS 3

= Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments to IAS 37

= Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018=-2020

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IAS 41 Agriculiure
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)

New and revised [FRSs In issue buf not yet effective and not early adopted

The foliowing amendments, improvements and interpretations that are assessed by
managemeant as likely o have an impact on the consolidated financial statements, have been
issued by the 1ASE prior o the date the consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issu&, but have not been applied in these consolidated financial statements as their afective
dates of adoption ars for future accounting panods

« Amendments o IAS 1 — Classification of Liablites as Current or Mon-current
{1 January 2023)

+ Disclosure of Accounting Polkcies = Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
{1 January 2023)

» [Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to 1AS 8 (1 January 2023)

»  Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28; Sale or Contribution of Assets between an |nvestor
and #s Aszociate or Joint Venture, The ameandmenis address the confiict between IFRS
10 &nd IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold to an
ass0ciate oF & joint venture (The IASE postponed the effactive date of this ameandmeant
indefinitely}. (Early adoption is parmittad),

s Defered Tax related 1o Assels and Lishiities arsing from a8 Single Transaction -
Amendments ta |AS 12 (1 January 2023)

Functional and presentation currency

Allhough the functional currencies of the Parent company and its subsidiaries are the ocal
currency of the country of domicile In which they operate, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (AED) which is considered as the Group's
reporkng Surrency.

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted, and which have been consistently applied, are
25 follows:

Property, plant and eguiprent

Property, plant and equipment sre stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment fosses. The cost less estimated residual value, where material, is depreciated
from the date the asset |5 available for use unfil it is derecognised, using the straighi-line
method over thae estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Solar equipment 25 years
Furniture and fiztures 5 years
Office equiprment S years
Toke and equipmeant b years

Capital work-in-progress is stated st cost less any impairment losses and Is not depreciated,
Thils will be depreciated from the date the relevant assets are ready for use
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B)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or recognised as a separate
asset as appropriate only when it is probable that fulure economic benefits assaciated with
the expenditure will low 1o the Group and such cost can be measured reliably, Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment When significant
parts of properly, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parls as individual assets with specific useful fives and depreciales them
accordingly. The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognised.

All ofher repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial
penod in which they are incurmed.

An assassmant of deapreciation methed. useful ves and residual values = undertaken st
each reporting date and, where material, If there is & change in estimate, an appropriate
adjustment is made to the depreciation change

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the camrying
amount. These are recognised within 'other incoma/administrative expenses’ in profit ar loss,

Impairment of tanglble assets

Al each reporting date, the management reviews the camying amounts of its tangitle assets
o determine whether there is amy indication thal those assels have suffered an impairmeant
toss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
o determine the exient of the impairment loss if any. Where il is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the acquirer estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs.

Recoversble amount is the higher of fair value less costs o sefl and value-in-use, In
28ses8ing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
u=ing a pre-tzx discount rate that reflects curreant market asssssments of the time valus of
maney and the rnisks specific 1o the asset

If tha recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimeted to be less than itz
carrying amounl, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) is reduced to ils
recoverable amount, An impairment loss s recognised immediataly in profil or kss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in ‘which case the impairment loss s
treated as a revaluation decreass,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the asset (cash-
generaling unif) is increased fo the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increasad camying amount does not excesd the carrying amount that would have been
defermined had no impairment less bean recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit] in
prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immadiataly in profit or loss,
unkzss the relevant asset s carried at a revalued amaunt, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss i freated as a revaluation increase,
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al

h}

Investment in associates

Investments where the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding befween 20% and 50% of tha share capital of the investse
company, are ireated as assoclates and accounted for under the equity method of accounting
stating the investment initially at costfair value and adjusted for the Group's share of the
changes in net assets of the investes company after the date of acquision, and for any
imparment in value

Invaniories

Inventories are staled at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost Is ammived at using
the \Weighted Average Cost (WAC) and comprises Invaice value plus applicable landing
charges less discounts. Net realisable value is based on estmated seling price less any
estimated cost of completion and disposal

Goods-in-transit represents the inventory aver which Group has legal title based on terms of
purchase, but which are physically not received al the Group's wareshouse

Share premium

The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as share
premium under equiy. Further, the transaction costs relating to additicnal shares Issues
deducted from the share premium under equity

Share application moneay

The amount received as application money for ssuance of equity shares in future has been
classified as share application money under equity. Further, the transaction costs relating to
additional shares issues deducted from the share application under aqulty.

Staff benefits

The Group provides staff end-of-semvice benafits 1o its non-UAE national employess as per
the applicable local laws. The enttierment to these benefits is based on the employess' last
drawn salary and length of services which is accrued ower the period of employmeant.
Provision for staff end-of-zervices benefits are disclosed as non-current liability,

Provision s also made for employees’ entittement to annual leave and air fare for eligibie
employees &5 per the policy of the Group. Provision relating o annual leave and air fare s
disciosed as current liability as employess are entitied to redeem these benefits at any point
of imea after ihe raporting period

Statutory resorve

Statutory reserve is created by appropelating 5% of the profit of Sunraofs Envirm Solar
Energy Systems LLC (the “subsidiary”) as required by Article 103 of the UAE Federal Law
Mo. (32) of 2021. The shargholder may resolva to discontinue such deduction when the
reserve totals 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not avaitable for distribution
except as provided in the Federal Law. During the year, no transfer of statutory reserve has
bean made on account of loss incurmed by the subsidiarny,
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Revenue recognition

The Group is in the business of solar ensrgy systems & components trading and power
generation, ransmission & distribution equipment, electrical fitting contracting, solar energy
systam Installation, sale of solar power and engaged in production, assembiy, distribution and
management servicas 1o bulld a power plant,

Revenus from confracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or
sernvices |3 transiamed to the customer at an amount that reflects the considaration to which
the Group expects to be enfitied in exchange for those goods or services,

The Group recegnises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-stap model as
set cut in IFRS 15:

1. Identify the contracts with customers: A contract is defined a& an agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceabls nghts and obligations and sets out the criteria for
every confract that musk be met

£ ldenlly the performance obligations in the contract A performance obligation = a
promise in @ contract with a customer to transfer a good or sevice to the customer.

3. Delermine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services 1o a cuslomer, axcluding amounts collected on behall of third parties.

4. Abocate the transaction price to the parformance obligations in the confract For a contract
that has more than one performance obdgation, the Group will allocate the transaction price
to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects fo be enlitied in exchange for satisfying esch performance
obligation

8. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation at a point
in time ar over time

The Group satisfies a performanca obligation and recognises revenue over fime, if one of the
following crifera is met;

+ The customear simulianeously recelves and consumes the benefits provided by the

Group's performance as the Group performs; or

+ The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the

assel is created or enhanced: or

= The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group

and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

The Group s required to assess each of its contracts with customers to datermine whether
parfarmance cbligations are satisfied aver time or at & point in fime in order to determine the
appropriate method of recagnesing revenus
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n

Construction contracts

Contract revenues are recognised over a period of time, based on the stage of completion of
ihe coniract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract cosls incurmed
for satisfying the performance cbligaton to the tota! astimated contract costs

Cantract revenues are recognised based an the stage of completion of the cantract activity
Revenue 15 measured based on the proporion of contract costs incurmed for satisfying the
performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct relationship
Bebtween the input and the productivity. Claims are accounted for as income when accepted
by the custarmer.

Expected loss, |f any, on contracts are recognised as expense in the period in which it i3
foresean, irrespactive of the stage of complation of the confiract.

Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are approved
either fo the coniract scope or contract price, Accounting for modifications of contracts
involves assessing whaether the services added to an ewxisting contract are distinct and
whether the pricing i& a standeione sedling price. Sernvices added that are not distinct are
accounted for on 8 cumulative calch-up basiz, while thosa that are distinct are accounted for
prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
standajone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
coniract if not priced at the standalone selling prica,

Sale of services
Revenue from services rendered over ime, such as operation and mainfenance cantracts,
are recognised on straight line basis over the period of the performance obligation

Contracts for composite sale of goods and services comprise of two performance
abligations because the promise to transfer the goods and promise to provide services are
capable of being distinct and separately (dantfiable. Tha Group allocates the transaction
price based an ihe relative stand-alone selling prices of the goods and services

The Group has concluded that ravenue from sale of sarvices should be recognised over time
uging input mathod.

Sale of energy
Revenue from the supply of energy is recognised an the basis of electricity provided during
the year on an accruals basis with referance to the meter readings.

Cantract assetls represents tha energy income eamed but not bifled Lo the clients.

Contract costs
Cantract costs comprise costs incurred to fulfil a contract that maet all of the following criteria
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* The costs ralate directly lo a contract or fo an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify,

= The costs genarate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying {or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

+ The costs are expecied to be recovered under the terms of the contract with the customer.

Costs that relata directly fo a contract (or a specific anticipated contract) includa any of the
following:

» Direct labor salaries and wages of employess who provide the promisad services directly
o the customer,

»  [Direct materials used in providing the promised services to a customar;

* Allocations of costs thal relate directly to the contract or to contract activities, including
costs of contract management and supervision, insurance, and depreciation of toals and
suipment used in fulfiling fhe contract:

» Costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer under the contract;

&  Other costs that are incurred only because Group eniered inic the contract such as
paymens o subcanfractors.

Dapiction of a Group's performanca might be to recognise revanue at an amount equal to the
cost of @ good used o satisfy & performance obligation if the Group expects at contract
inception that all of tha following condibons would be met:

« The good Is not distinet.

= The customer & expected fo obtain control of the good significanty before recsiving
services related to the good

= The cost of the fransferred good Is significant relative to the total expected costs o
compieiely satisfy the performanca chligation

= The Group procures the goods from a third party and is not significantly involved in
designing and manufactunng the goods.

Contract assets

A Contract assat is the right to consideration in exchange for gaods or sarvices transferred to
the cusiomer, If the Group performs by transferring goods or services o a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment i due, a contract asset & recognised
from the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to
receivable when the nghts bacama uncanditional,
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Contract liabilities

A cantract liabdlity is the obligation to transfer goods or services o a cusiomer for which the
Group has recenved consideration from the customer. If a customar pays consideration befare
Ihe Group transfers goods of senices to the customer, a confract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabiliies ara
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the conlract.

Leases

The Group leases office pramezes, Rental contracts are typically made for fxed periods of
12 months but may hawve extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease armangements dao
not impose any covenants, however leased assats may not be usaed as security for bormowing
PUTpOSES.

shor-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to s shar-lerm leases [ie.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
da not contain @ purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leasas are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balancs in current accounts ang
bank deposits free of encumbranca with a maturity date of three months or less from the date
of deposit,

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated Into UAE Dirhams &t the rate of exchange
ruling on the date of the ransactions.

Monetary assets and lisbilities expressed in foreign cumencies are translated nto UAE
Dirhams &t the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

LGains of losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are taken to profit or loss except
for foreign currency transkation differences ansing on account of presentation of assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes, which are included in shareholder's
funds.

The translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries mic AED is performed for
statement of financial position account using the exchange rate in effect at the reporting date
and for revenue and expenses using the average exchange rate for the period, The
exchange differences arising on the translation are recognisad in other comprehensive
income
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g)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the perod in which they are incurred
except those that are atiributable to the acguisition and construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for is intended use (“quaiifying asset™).
Such borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the related qualifying asset up to the date the
qualifying asset is ready for use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outlow of economic banefits will be required to
setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as @ provision is the best astimate of the consideration required to
seftie the present obligation at the reporting dale taking into account the naks and uncertambes
sumounding the cbligation, Where a provision is measured using the cash fiow estimated to
sattle the present chligation, il's carrying amount is the present value of those cash fiows

When sxme or all of the economic benefits required to sattle a provision are expectad o be
recovered from a third party. the receivable is recognised as an asset if #t is vitually cerain
that reimbursemant will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured raliably

Contingencies and commitments

Contingent lizbilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. They are
dieclosad unless the possibility of an outfiow of resources embadying economic benefits is
remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated financial staterments but
disclosed when an infiow of economic benefils is probable.

Value added tax

As per the Federal Decree-Law No. (08) of 2017, Value Added Tax (WAT). is charged at 5%
standard rafe or 0% (as the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made
by the laxable person

The Group charges and recovers Value Added Tax (VAT) on every taxable supply and
deemed supply, in accordance with the applicable commercial VAT laws. Irecoverable VAT
for which the Group cannaot avail the credit is charged 1o the relevant expenditure catagony
included in costs of non-current assats. The Group fles its VAT returns and computes the
payable tax {which is output fax less input 1ax) for the alliotted tax periods and ceposit the
same within the prescribed due dates of filing VAT return and tax paymant VAT receivable
and VAT payable are offset and the net amount is reporied in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group has & legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and has the iniention to settle the same on net basis
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Promeotional privileges

Subsidiaries In Thailand has been granted promotional privileges under the Investment
Promation Act &s approved by The Board of Investmeant under the promation certificates as
follows:

BOI certificates No. 62-1314-1-00-1-0 dated 28 November 2019 and ceriificate no. §2-1228-
1-00-1-0 dated 15 November 2021 for production solar rooficp power. Under these
privileges, the subsidiary has recetved exemplion from certain taxes and duties as detailed in
the certificate, including exempticn from corporate income tax from the amounts not
exceeding 100% of capital investment excluding cost of land and working capital for 2 period
of 8 years from the date of the first revenue earned (17 August 2020)

Current versus non-current classification
Tha Group presents assels and kabilites in the consolidated statement of financal position
based on currentinon-current classification

A asset B currenl when it is:

= Expected o be realsed or intended to be sold or consumed in the narmal operating cycle

= Hald primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realisad within twalve months after the reparting periad. ar,

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used to setile a lkability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A lizbility ks current when;

= |lisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle.

« |l i= held primarily for the purpose of trading.

» [|tisdua to be setted within twelve months after the reporting penod. or,

* There iz no unconditional right o defer the settlement of the ligbility for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabiities as non-current,

Financial instruments

Classification

©n initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured ab: amortised cost: fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCHT) — debt investment; FWTOC! - equity
inwestment; or fair vakie through profit or loss PFYTRL™).

The classification of financial assels al Initial recognition depends on the financial assets’
contraciual cash fiow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.
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I order for @ financial asset (o be classified and measured at amorised cost or FYTOCH, it
needs to give risa lo cash flows that are ‘solefy payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount gutstanding. This assessmant is referred to as the SPPI fest and iz
perfiormed af an instrumental level.

The Group's business model for managing financial asseis refers io how it manages its
financial assets in order o generate cash flows, The business model datermines whather
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cashfiows, salling the financial essets, ar
both,

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FYTPL or at amortised cost The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabllites at initial recognition.

Recognitian

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes & party fo the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales
of financial assels are recognised on ftrade-dste, the date on which the Group commils to
purchase or sell the asset,

Derecognition
Financial asseis are de-recognised when, and only whan,

# The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or
*  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an abligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and aithar
ia) the Group has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the aszat,
ar

(b} the Group has neither transfermed nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the agset, but has fransfersed santral of the asset,

Financial abilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished i &, when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired

Weasurement

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing componant that
is initially measured at the transaction price) is initally measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at FWTPL, ransaction cosis that are direclly aftributable fo its acquisition, Transactions
costs of financial assels caried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss

The following accountng policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assats
and liabiltes
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Financial assels al amortizad cosf
Financial asseis that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost less impairment loss and deferred income, if any using the efective interest methad,

1. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
callect confractual cash flows; and

2. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are
solely paymenis of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financial assets are subsequently measurad at fair value

Interest incoma, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss, Amy gain of koss on derecogndion is recognised in profit or loss

The fmancial assets at amoriised cost comprise of trade and other receivables, other financsal
assets, due from a related party and cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liahiiies
All financial llabilibes are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Intarast methad ar at FYTPL.

Financial liabitites at amortised cost comprise of borrowings. loans from shareholder, trade
and other payables and due o refated parties,

Impairmeant of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECL=) for investments in all
debt instruments nat held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
differance between the contractual cash fiows due in accordance with the contract and all tha
cash flows that the Group expects to recaive, discounted at an approximation of the criginal
effective Interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral hald or other credit enhancemants thet are integral to the contractual terms.

Loss allowances are measured on elther of the following basis:

- 12-month ECLs: ECLs that result from possible defaull events within 12 manths after the
repartirg date; and

~ Lifetime ECLs: ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expectad life of a
financial instrurmeasnt.

The Group measuras the loss allowance at an amaunt equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECLs:
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— Bank balances. other recelvabie, due from a related party and other financial assets, for
which credit risk (le. the risk of default occuming over the expected life of the financial
instrument} has nat increased significantly since initial recognition

The Group has slected to measure loss allwances for trade recaivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to fifetime ECLs. The Group appiies a simplified approach in cakculating
expected credit losses. The Group does not track changes In credit risk, but instaad
recognized a loss allowance based on lifetime expectad credit losses at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix thet is based cn its histarical credit loss
expenence, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the econcmic
environment.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has incraased significantly since
initial recagnitian and when estimating ECLs. the Group considers reasonable and suppartive
information that is relavant and available without undue cost or effort This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed cradit assessment and including forward leoking infarmation.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financizl asset has increased significantly # it is
mere than 90 days past due.

The Graup considers a financial assel to be in default when;

- The customer is unlikaly to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as  ealizati security (if any is held); or

— The financial asset i more than 360 days past due

The maximum pericd considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk

AL each reporling date, the Group assesses whether financial @ssels carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset i3 'credit-impaired’ when one or more avents that
have a defrimental impact on the estimated future cash fliows of the financial assets have
atcurred.

Loss allewances for financizl assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

Offseting

Financial asssts and liabilities are offset and the net amount reportad in the consclidated
statement of financial posifion when there Is a legally enforcsable right to offset the
recognisad amounts and there Is an intention to setfle on a net basis, or reakse the asset and
gettle the liabilty simultanecusly
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W)

Equity
Share capial Is racorded at the value of proceeds received iowards interest in share capital of
the Parent company.

Fair value measurement
The Group discloses the fair value of inancial instruments measured at amortised cast

The fair value & the price that would be received to sell an agsel or paid lo transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction batween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the prasumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liakility takes place either,

= In the principal market for the asset or lability or
» In tha absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liakdity.

The far value of an assel or a labilily is messured using assumptions that the marke
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market
participants act In thair best economic interosis.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets at initisl recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them

impairment

At each reporling date, management conducts an assessmeni of properly, plant and
equipment Lo determane whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In the
absence of such Indicatons, no further action s taken. If such indications do exist, an
analysis of each asset iz undertaken to datermina its net recoverable amount and, if this is
bedow |15 carrying amount, 8 provision is mada.

The Group apples expected credit loss (ECL) model to measure loss allowance in case of
financial assets on the basis of 12-month ECLs or Lifeime ECLs depending on credit risk
characteristics and how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which are determined on a
protability-weighted basis

Investments in subsidiaries

Management considers that it has de-facto control over Sunroofs Enviro Solar Enargy
Systems LLC even though it does not hold the voling rights. The investment is made by the
Parent company through one of its directors, whe Is acting a5 a nominee shareholder on
behalf of the Parent company. There is no history of ather sharsholders forming & group to
exercisae their votes collectively.
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Management considers that it has de-facto control over Cleanmax Engineering {Thailand)
Company Limited even though it does not hold 100% vaoting rights. The nvestment is made
by the Parent company and partly through one of the legal enfities in Thaitand, who i8 acting
a3 @ nominee shareholder on behalf of the Parent company. There s no history of other
shareholders forming a group to exercise their votes collectivaly

Recognition of revenue and allocation of transaction price

idantification of perfarmance abligations

The Group determined that the sale of equipment and installation services are provided as a
single componant to customers and accordingly it becomes single performance obligation in
respect of the services being performed. The equipment and installation are  highly
interdependent or highly interrelaied as the Group will not ba able o transler the aguipment if
the custamer declined installation services.

Deferming liming of safisfaction of performance obligation

Contract revenue is recognised over tme as performance obligations are fulfilled in
accordance with IFRS 15 —Revenue from Contracts with Customers.  Tha timing of revenus
recognition is subject to judgement surrounding the costs expacted to be incurred in
completing the work, a& revenue on contracts is recognised on @ percentage complation
baszs.

7. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Hey assumplions made conceming the future and other key sources of eslimation uncertainty
gt the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a8 matenal adjustment to the
camying amaunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Carrying values of property, plant and equipment

Residual values are assumead o be zero unless a reflable estimate of the current value can
be obtained for simikar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at
the end of the aszsets’ estimated useful lives

Impairment
Assessments of nel recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are based on
assumptions regarding future cash flows expected to be recewad from the related assets,

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expectad loss rales. The managemeant uses judgement in making these assumptions and
sefecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on the past history, existing market
conditions as well 85 forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of
the key assumplions and inputs used are disclosed in note 5{v).
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Inventory provisions

Management regularly undertakes a review of the Group's inventory including goods-in-
tranan, stated at AED 4,972 343 (previcus year AED 5658 800) in order 1o assess the Ekaly
realization procesds, taking into account purchase and replacemeant prices, technological
changes, age, likely obsolescence, the rate at which goods are being sold and the physical
damage. Based on the assessment assumplions are made as o the level of provisioning
required

Staff end-of-service benefits

The entities in LAE of the Group compute the provision for the lizbility to staff end-of-senice
benefits stated at AED 169,567 (previous year AED 173, 720), assuming that all employess
were 1o leave as of the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that no significant
difference would have arisen had the llability been calculsted on an actuarial basis as salary
inflation and discount rates are likely to have approxsmately equal and opposite effects.

Project cost to complete estimates

At the end of sach reporing period, the Group s required to estimate costs o complete
contracts. Estimating costs to complete on such contracts reguires the Group o maks
estimates of future cosls to be incurred, based an work to be performed beyond the end of
the reporting period. The Group uses internal quantity surveyors together with project
managers fo estimate the costs to completle for construction contracts. Factors such as
changes in material prices, labour costs, defects liability costs and ather costs are included in
the contract cost estimates based on best estimates of the contract progress and remaining
works at the year-end These eslimates also include the cost of potential claims by
contractors and the cost of meeting other contractual obligations to the customers,

Contract variations and claims

Variations orders are accounted for prospactively based on the nature and price of additianal
products and services requested through the variation orders. During the year ended
31 March 2023, no amount of claim recognised as part of the revenue (previous year
AED Nil)

The selling price includes varable consideration (including claims, re-measurable contract
values and discounts) in the transaction price to which it expects fo be entitied from the
incaption of the contract The ameount of varabla eonsideration i restricted o the extent that
ILis highly probable that a significant reversal in the amaunt of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when ha uncarainty associated with the variable consideration is subseguenily
resalved

Going concern assessmaent

The Group has incurred a loss of AED 11,357,788 for the yesr ended 21 March 2023 and at
inat date, the Group's losses aggregated to AED 12,148,473, Notwithstanding this fact, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been preparad on a golng concern basis
as the management of the Group beleves that the future operations of the Group will
generate sufficient profits and cashflows, the shareholder has resclved 1o continue its
operations in the General Meeting hald.
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B. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQGUIPMENT
Capital wek.in. Salar Fumitura {rffica Tenls and Tatsd
progresst™ equipment  and fiures  equipmend  equipment
1]

AED AED AED AED AED AED
Cost
AL Apal 2021 BETT 1T ArB41318 17588 7831 - 4B54%E3
fddions 33 144.E78 - 1475 22 TED - M3 ASETTI
T ransiar £8.415, 724 6419, 724 — - —
Impact due 1o loss af contral {nota 3) (2237000 [BELA0N.TEZ) - - - (@1, T, e}
At 3 March 022 10026270 7 B82S 18741 0551 - T83as
Aurictinres 14,131,785 58 G4 133,223 - 2500 14,968,152
Trarsfar (2102 6060 12102808 o = % 2
Disposas {35, ACE) {147 504) 3750 (827D - {183 348)
A3 March 2023 12MAT4H 1982506 18 IG5 4378 32500 12118831
Accumulated depreciaticn
& 1 Al 200 20 |, 373521 0206 g ] = 1,185 744
Deprociation - 314,757 AE3s 4 587 - 32A 23
Irnpact due o s of comrol (note 3] - (82, T - - - (982 TF0)
A1 31 March 2683 = 510,548 12847 BEIE e BT
Deprecialion - Gy Tas 4.1 - 5786 BH7, Ta5
Adprsimen on dsposais 5 (v - (4 528 = {17, 708)
A 31 March 2023 = 1.155 157 37,058 074 5788  1.200077
Carrying amount
AL 1 Agnil 2021 B.EF7 117 36662758 CRL 5816 - 453549088
AL 31 March 2022 W0e52m  7.4a71s EF ) 23,848 = ITAMAE
Al 31 Masch 2023 12018741 18757749 11,947 2205 26712 9655
(@)  Capitsl work-in-progress relabing 1o construction of salar equipmant are disclosed in note 35

()

Selar equipment with a cost of AED 19,912,906 (previcus year AED 7,858,261} and & net

book value of AED 18,757,748 (previous year AED T7,348.713) pravide security to the third-
party bank loan (refer note 22)

g INVESTMENT

Investment in an associate

Cleanmax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO ™=

Share capital

Fair value adjustment due to loss of contral™
Zhare of profit (cumulative)
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In the previous year, Cleanhax Alpha LeasaCo FACO had issued additional shares to ather
parties and due to which the Company had lest its conirol over the subsidiary {shareholding of
the Company changed from 77% 1o 3% with effect from 7 Oclober 2021), Henca, tha
Company had de-recognised the investment in the subsidiary and recognised investrment in
an associate. Investment in an associate is recognised at fair value. Gain arising out of
recognition of investment in an associate was recorded in retained eamings.

{a) The natura of invesimant in associate is a5 follows:

Mame of esacclate Principal activities Country of Proporticn (%) of
— incorporation ownership inferest
Hzz
CleanMax Alpa Solar anergy systems rantal LAE 5%
Legsale FZCO
Aggregated summary financal information relating to the associates are as follows:
2023 2022
AED AED
Assets 132,573,214 88651, 743
Liabilitiea B4, 477,164 52,752 814
Revenue 12,887,693 7,248 318
Profit 2,157,121 1,672 574
et assets of an assockabe 48 096,050 45 538 930
interest i an associate 36% 36%
Share of profit from an associate 776,562 212,692
2023 2022
AED AED
10, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Debt instruments at amorlised cost
Long-term loan (o a related party 19 14, 824 86T 2 BBE3IET4
Other financial azsetz at amortised cost:
Margin deposits I 90,000 1,173,322
15,023,867 26,056,996
Disclosed under:
Mor-current financial assats 14,924, 867 248838574
Current financial assets 89,000 1173522
15,023,867 zs.ﬂéié:ﬁﬁ-ﬁ__
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{a)

=l

11.

13

This represents loans given to associate, CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO AED 14,924 857
(previcus year AED 24 883.674). The kans are unsecured and without fixed repayment

schedule. These loans carry a 6% p.a. rate of interest (previous year 8% p.a),

A reconciliation of the movements in the long-tesm loan fo a related parly is as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED
Dpaning balance 24 BB3 674 -
Amount converted from due from related party into
lzan amount 13,566,174
Loan given during the year - 11,017,500
Loan repaid during the year (9,958 807) -
Closing balance 14,924 867 24 BE3 574

Interest recelvables from the above loans amounting to AED 344 358 ig reclassifed under

ather recervables (pravious year AED 8564, (94),

Represents deposits amounting to AED 89,000 (previous year AED 1,173,3222). held as

seculity against bankers' letter of guarantee issued by the Group {refer note 35)

INVENTORIES

Project materials 4,155,423 1,049 B0

Goods-in-transit B16,920 4 606,710
4,872,343 5,656 8500

TRADE AMD OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 1,593 781 1,316,872

Deposits 180,818 107,711

Dihar recalvablas 500,355 1,007,094
2,684,954 2431 677

The Group does not hold any coltateral against rade receivables (previous year AED Nil)

An age analysis of rade recervablas as follows:

Mol past dua - =

0 — B0 days past due 1,987,722 1,316,872

Mare than 180 days past due 5,053 -
1,993,781 1,316,872

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments 592,354 153,827

Advance to vendors 2,115,838 &57 290

Staff advances 175,033 44 083

VAT recelvable {net) 1,786,078 851,577
4,668,403 1,746,786
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14. RELATED PARTIES
The Group enters into fransactions with entities that fall within the definition of a ralated party
a2 contained in International Accounting Standard 24, The management considers such
transactions o be in the nomal course of business and are al prices determined by the
management

Related parties comprise the parentufbmate parenb'shareholder, associate, directors, key
managemant parsonnal.

Al the reporting date, significant balances with related parties were 2= follows:

Parent Associate Directorhey Tatal Tetal
maragement 2023 2022
peraicnne
AED AED AED AED AED
Eong-term loan bo a refated parly - 14,824 867 - 14,624 867
- 24 BE3ET4 - 24 BE3 B4
Irvesirmeni - 16, 854 4 Bl - 16,854 454
- 16,077 842 - 16,077 Bog
Ireluded i racde and ofher
recenablas - 44 385 - 344 289
= 854,085 - B54 (h
Confract assais - TI04ATE - TT0 476
- 2493811 - 2493811
Contraci kabilities s 3718 447 =3 3,738 443
- 3,498 200 - 3,496 300
Included in other current Habdany . 5,640, 108 - 5,640,106
- 5,480 TG - 5 480 TEQ
Dua from a relsted party 235 il - - 238 444
- 275405 - 275209
Due io related paries 10,882 462 - 276,893 11,158,381
2,682 /45 - = 2.GB2 B4B
Loans from sharaholdar 18,365 488 - - 18,365 488
24 428 DE1 - - 24 425 061
Gusranlme receivacd T.A80.000 - - 7,350,000
7,350,000 - - 7,350,000
Prowigion for stall end-of-service
benelils - - B.186 8,186
- - 139,034 131,034

All balances excepl guaraniee recaived are unsecured and are expected to be sattled in cash
Rapayments and ofher terms are sef out in nofes 14, 18, 19, 21 and 34
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Significant transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:

Parent
AED
Hevenue aa
Direci cosie 22 254 D4
4,847 481
Crireector's remunaration -
Inerest income
Finance cosis 1. 458 566
4386 a0s
Expenses recharged bo a relzied
pastly =
Expenses recharged from a related
parly 1,870,356
am

Arxcociate

AED
18,220 857
A5 486,531

1,608 253
54,004

127,342

G441, rer

Directorikey Total

managamant 2023
parsonne|

AED AED

- 18,279,957

- 22,254,064

BGD 957 869,957
853,860

1,508,252

1,488,686

- 2,312,153

Total
2022

AED

46,466,531

4,647 481

£63.860

B54 0o

2,396 806

127 42

am

The Group also receives funds fromiprovides funds fo related parties as waorking capital

facilities at fiwed rates of interest.

15. CONTRACT ASSETSICONTRACT LIABILITES
Coniract assets refaling to costs incurred to fulfil a

contract

Disclosed as:
Current contract assets

Contrac! abilithes

Disclosad as:
Currant cantract liabildies

18 CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash an hand
Bank balancss in current aocounts
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2023 2022

AED AED
8,647 982 3,552 873
6.647 982 3,552,673
7.765,142 5.879,8a7
7,785,142 3,879,897
34,006 411
17,836,784 7,226 676
T 227,087

17,870,790
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2023 2022
AED AED
i7. SHARE CAPITAL
lssued and paid up:
16,877 shares of AED 1.000 each {previous year
5,858 shares of AED 1,000 each) 16,877,000 6,858,000
Narne No. of shares AED
Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd., India 16,877 16,877,000

a) Vide an amendment fo the Memorandum of Association dated 7 March 2023, the Company
has increased the share capital by issuing 10,019 fully paid-up shares to CleanMax Enwiro
Energy Solutions Private Lid. The shareholders at the reporting date and their interests as at
that date in the share capital of the Company were as follows:

Hame AL 31 Warch 2023 AL31 March 2022
Mo, of AED % af % of Mo of AED % of % ol
shanes hadding profii shares Teodding prodit
sharing sharing
ClaanMax Emuira  Energy
Sohibons Private L 16877 ISETT.000  100% 100% 6,858 6858000  100% 100%
18,877 1GETTON0  i00%  100% B850 O85H000  100% 134%
2023 2022
AED AED
18 SHARE PREMIUM
Opaning balance BET 440 16,081,844
Fremium on additional shares issued during the year 19,013,100 342,000
Transaction costs (76,120} (54,5580
Adjustment on less of control over subsidiary (note 3) - {16,081, 844}
Clasing balance 19,830,420 BET, 440

(@) Share premium of AED 887 440 (net transaction cost of AED 54, 580) arising out of inifial
payment of 23,058 shares amounting to AED 280 igssued during the year ended

31 March 2022

(k)  Share premium of AED 6.125,665 (net transaction cost of AED 6,334) arising out of 2,679
shares amounting to AED 2,129 issued during the year ended 31 March 2023;

{e) Share premium of AED 3,247 743 (net transaction cost of AED 41 257) arising out of 1,643
shares amounting o AED 2,105 issued during the year ended 31 March 2023;

{d) Share premium aof AED 9565671 (net transaction cost of AED 28529) arising out of
5,597 shares amounting to AED 1,709 issued during the year ended 31 March 2023,
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18.

20,

21

(2]

22

2023 2022
AED AED
SHARE APPLICATION MONEY
Cpening bakance 8,017 200 4 000,000
Share applicalion money on additional shares 34,786 848 9,017,200
Alotment of shares (29,038,100) {#.000,000)
14,775,048 8,077,200
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Opening balance 153,000 5718837
share application money for Issuance of additional
shares 2,998 -
Share pramium received - 23676974
Adjusimant on loss of control over subsidiary (note
3 - (28242 611)
Closing balance 156,986 163,000

This rapresents share capital of Sunroofs Envire Solar Energy System LLG, Dubai and
Cleanmax Engineering [Thagand) Company Limiied. Thailand

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDER

Dpening balance 24,425,081 23,740,202
Receipts during the year (nef) 14,000,000 2,701,527
Interest credited 1,498,686 2,398 808
Inberest paid {1,606, 258) (2,017 &674)
Loan paid during the year (19,952,000) (3,395,803)
Closing balance 18,365,488 24 425 0B1

Thiz represents interest bearing bans received from sharsholder with a matunly of three
years from the date of receipt of loans as at reporting date. Loans amounting of
AED 863881 is repayable within a vear and subject to interest rate at 0% pa ard
remaining laan is repayable after a year and subject to interest rate in the range of 6% p.a to

1Fspa

Disclosed as:
Man-currant portion 17,701 627 T A64 927
Cument porion 663,961 16,960,124
18,165 488 24 425 081
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Long-term |oan from third party 14,519 493 15,584 515
Less: Current porticn = loan from third party (note 24) (BBE,360) (T23,B65)
13,851,133 14,870,850
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Cn 18 June 2020 and 21 March 2022, the Group had entered into a long-termn loan
agreement with a lender amounting to AED 6 854,134 and AED 8,740,381, carrying interest
rate of 5.80% and 5,29% per annum respectively. The principal amount and interest are
repayable half-yaarly in June and December every year. The last instalmant of both the loans
is dug on June 2025, The Group has mortgaged power generation equipment io secure these
koans [refer note &(b)]

2023 2022
AED AED
23 PROVISION FOR STAFF END-OF-SERVICE-BENEFITS
Opening balance 173,720 180,680
Provision for the year 124,278 37776
Transter from a ralated party 65,254 -
Transfer to a related party (2.52T) -
Adjustment due to kbass of control - (34,327
Paid during the year {191,168) {19,408)
Closing balancs 169,567 173,720
24,  SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Current portion of lang-term loans {note 22) BEE,360 723,885
A malunily analysis of loan from thind party are as follows:
1 =3 monihs 134,872 T23.8BB5
3 months — 1 year 533,488 =
Total 668,360 723,665

Bank facilities from Mashreq Bank are secured by financial bank guarantea of AED 7,350,000
{previous year AED 7 350 000) receivad from the parent company.

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 1,000,542 B.388,500
Accruals 2,188 680 1,220,853
Other payables 313,748 189,035

3,502 970 5,500,298

The entire trade and other payables are due for payment within one year from the reporting
date.

26,  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance for goods and services 5,640,108 0,460 789
Emplovee related payables 1,578 175,570
5 641,684 5,636,759
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27

28,

MAMNAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Group continues as a
gaing concern and to provide the shareholder with a rate of returm on their investmeant
commensurate with the level of risk assumed.

Capital which 15 unchanged from the previous year. compnses equity funds as presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position and amounts due toldue from related partes.
DCebl comprises lolal amounts owing to third parties, net of cash and cash equivalents.

The Group is subject to externally imposad capital requirements as per provisions of the bank
facilites availed. Sunrocfa Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLC (the subsidiary company) has
accumulated losses exceeding 50% of 15 share capital, the shareholders of the subsidiary
company have resolved to continue with the operations of the subsidiary compary, The Group
has complied with all the capital requirements fo which it i3 subject

Funds generated from mternal accruals together withi funds received from a shareholder are
retairad in the business according to the busmess requirements o maintain the capital at
désined levals.

REVEMLUE

The Group generates revenue from the transfer of senvices over fime. The disaggregated
revenue from contracts with customers by geographical segments, bype of services and fiming
af revenue recognition is presented below, The management believes that thiz best depicts
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the Group's revenue and cash fiows,

2023 2022
AED AED
Primary geographical segments
LAE 37,019,266 48,116,465
Thaitard 2,566,573 1,046 316
49 586,839 &0 182,781
Major goodi/service lines
Constructionfinstallation projects
- Revenue from projecis 35,214 568 47 891 45T
Sale of energy
Sale of enargy 2,563,611 1,046 316
Operation and maintenance
= Opergling maintenance 2,018,762 1,225 008
39,586,839 B0 162,781
Timing of revenue recognition
- Owvar fime 38,586,838 50,162,781
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2023 2022
AED AED
28. COS8T OF SALES
Purchases {Including direct expenses) 42 B38 461 47,111,013
Depreciation (note B) 657,786 314, T7eT
43,494 843 47 425 510
30 OTHER INCOME
Cradit balances written back = 143,535
Miscellaneous Incorme 80,776 26,527
90,776 170, 1682
31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benefits!® 3,858 544 2802000
Staff end-of-service benefils 124,278 37,776
Expenses refating to short-term leases BT.081 129,338
Commission and referral fees 225,098 T, 185
Legal and professional feas 1,536,750 612,638
Recruttment expenses 114,253 B5, 146
Travel and conveyance 300,065 173,562
Depreciation (nofe 8) 28,888 8,226
Qiher expenses B3B6.268 BES 804
T 1223238 5,452,760
(a) This inchedes directors remuneration of AED BE9 997 (previous year AED 883, BED).
32. INTEREST INCOME
On boan to a related party 1,508,253 BS54 054
On bank deposits 8,575 1,801
1,514 8328 B5E,BO6
a3, FINANCE COSTS
On bank overdrafis 391,591 751,606
On lean from third party T&T. 428 451,083
O loan from a shareholder 1,498,686 2,398 B0
2,647,715 3,609,498

S FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments
Classification and fair values

The net camying amounts a8 at the repoding date of financial assets and financial liabilities

are as falows:
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

At amortised cost
2023 2022
AED AED
Financial assets
Trade and oiher raceivables 2,684,954 2431677
Due from a related pary 236,444 275408
Oither financial assets (current and non-current) 15,023,867 26,066,956
Cash and cash equivalenis 17,870,790 7. 227 087
35,816,085 35991, 16D
Financial liabilities
Long-term bomowings 13,861,133 14,870,650
Shari=lerm borrowings BEE, 360 ¥23.865
Trade and oiher payables 3,502,970 8800208
Due o refated parties 11,158,361 2,682 846
Leans frarm sharabokder {curment and non-curmant} 18,365 488 24 425 081
47,547,312 82,502,720

Fair value measurement and disclosures

The management assesses the fair values of all its inancial assets and financial liabilities at
mach reporting date

The fair values of cash and cash egui/alents, trade and other receivables, other financial
assets (current), due from a related parly, shor-term borrowings, trade and other payables.
due to related parties and loans from shareholder (current portion) approximate: their carmying
amounts |argaly due to the shori-ferm maturities of thess mstruements

The following methods and assumplions were used to determine the fair values of other
financial assets/labilities:

Mon-current financial assets are evaluated by the Group using valuation technigues. The
inputs to these models are taken from obsearvable markels where possible, but where this is
nat feasible inputs are based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk
faciors, individual credit worthiness of the customers and credif risks characteristics. As at the
reporiing date, the carving amounts of such receivables, net of provisions, are not malerially
diffarent from their fair values.

Fair values of loans from shareholder are estmated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently avallable for debts on similar tems, credit risk and remaining maturitbes. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amount of such kability, & not matenally different from its fair
value.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Financial risk management

Rizk management objectives

Risk is inherent in the Group's activibes but is managed through & process of ongoing
identification, measuremeant and monitoring, subject 1o risk limits and other controls. This
process of nsk management s critical to the Group's continuing profitability. The Group's risk
management focusses on actively securing short o medium term cash flows by minimizing
the expoaure to financial markets

The management conducts and operates the business in @ prudent manner, taking info
account the significant risks to which the business i or could be axposad,

Tha primary risks to which the businesas is exposed, which are unchanged from the previous
year, comprise credit risks, lquidity risks and market risks {including curmency risks, cash fow
interest rate risks and fair value intarest rate risks)

The management of the Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of thesa risks
which are summarisad below:

Cradit risk
Credit rigk is the risk that cne pary toa fmancial instrurment will fall to discharge an obligation
and cause the third party to Incur a financial loss.

Credit risk is managed by azsessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the
potential for exposure to the market in which they operate, combined with reguiar manitoring
and fallowe-up.

Financial assets that potentially expose the Group to concentrations of credit risk comprise
principally bank accounts, trade and cther recetvables, due from & related parly and ofher
financlal assels.

The Group's bank accounis are placed with high credit quality financial institutions.

The management assesses the credd risk arising from trade receivables and other
receivables, loan to related party and due from a related party taking into account their
financial position, past experence and cther factors, Based on the assessment individual risk
limits ars determined

Amounts due from a related party relate to transactions arising in the normal course of
business with minimal credit nek

At tha reporting date 85 32% of irade receivables was dug from wo CUsStomErs {previous year
100%% due from cne customer)

At the reparting date 96.75% of due from a redated parly are due fromv a related party
[previcus vear 100% due from a related party),
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Al the reporting date, there is no significant concentraton of credit risk from any parbcular
industry as the Group's customers are from diverse industries,

The Group uses an allowsnce matrix o measura the expecled credit losses of frade
receivabies and contract assels. Loss rates are calculated using 2 ‘flow rate’ method based
on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive slages of delinguency o
write-off,. Flow rates are calculated separately for exposures in different segments based on
the following common credit risk characteristics = geographic regeon, age of customer
relationship and type of product purchased.

Basad on the assessment, the management beligves that no impairment provision & required
under IFRS &.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in meeting financial abligations
due to shortage of funds The Group's exposure to bquiddy risk arises primarily from
mismaiches of the maturities of financial assels and financial liabilities.

The Group's approach o managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that & will abways
have sufficient lquidity to meet ids liabiilies when due, under both normal and  stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation
The Group manages liquidity risk by maniloring forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Group limits its liquidity risk by
gnsunng adequsts bank facilities ara avallable.

The table below surmmarises the maturities of the Group's undiscounted financial Rabiities at
the reporting date, based cn contractual paymeant datas and currant market interest ratas,

Less than ane year One to five years Total
20F3 201 20232 2021 2023 221
AED BED ARED AED AED AED
Long-ierm bormowings - - $3,861.133 14 E70EBED 13,861,133 14 BT EED
Shor-tarm bormesnge 68,260 723 BES - - GEB, 380 T&3.865
Trade and olhar
payables 3,602,570 9,800, 253 - - 3,502,970 8,600,298
Loans fram shamhoider 563,561 16,960,134 17,701,627 T 484 927 18 356 480 24 425 067
D 1o refated parties : 11_._1 ?ﬁjﬁ'l 2,632 EdB - = 11,158,361 2 6B B4
16,984,652 30,167 143 31,66L.B60 22335577 47 54T 312 52,602,720
Market risk

Market risk i the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of
finarcial instrument. The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and contrel market
risk exposures within acceptable paramaters, while optimizing the returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Currancy risk
Currency risk is the risk thal the values of financial instruments will fluctuaie because of
changes in faraign exchange ratas,

There are no significant currency risks as substantialy all financial assets and financial
fiabilties are denominated in UAE Dirham or US Dollar 1o which the Dirham is fixed, except

for the following:
2023 2022
AED AED
Cash and bank balances
Grazt Brifish Pound 3,540 3 254
Trade payable
Thai Bhat 292,217 2.z
Interest rabe risk

Imterest rate resk is the risk that the valse of financial instrumants wil fluctusie because of
changes in market infarest rates.

Loan from third party and loans from shareholder are subject to fixed interest rates at levels
generally cbtained in the UAE and are therefore exposed 1o fair value interest rate risk.

2023 2022
AED AED

35. OTHER CONTRACTED COMITEMENTS
For construction of sclar equiprment (note 8} 32,824,701 50,147,343

36, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Bankers' letter of guaraniee (nota 10) 3,541,583 623 928
Unutilized balznces of commercial latters of credit - 1,129,322
3,541,583 1,753,250

ar COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Previous year's figures have been regroupedireciassified wherever necessary 0 make them
comparabie to thosa of the currant period,
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a4 CORPORATE TAX

Cn 8 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance igsuwed the Feders| Dacres-Law No. (47) of
2022 Introducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing an or after 1 June
2023. The rate of corporate fax is 3% on the azabie intome excesding AED 375,000 and 0%
for gualifying fres zone companies on their qualifyimg incoms, subpect to meeting specified
conditions. There Is no impact of this law on the consolidaled fmancial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023, Management will sssess the implications of this
Federal Corporste Tax for the Group in due course.

For CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

o=
DIRECTOR

f 1._,.-"

|k

| " |. {1 |

1 VRO Ao TSI S e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT E

To the Shareholder of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the "Company”),
whilch comprige the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes mn equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including & summary of
significant accounting policies.,

In our opinicn, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Comparty as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),

Basis for Opinlan

We conducted our audit in sccordance with Intemnational Siandards on Auditing (ISAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibilites for
fhe Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Internaticnal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) fogether wilh the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the United Arab Emirates (UAE), and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and sppropriate to provide a basis
far our apinkon.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 2 {a) to the financial statements, which states that these financial
statements relate to ssparate financial statements of the Company The consolidated financial
#alaments of the Company and its subsidiaries which are required to be presantad in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standard 10 Consolidated Financial Statements are
presented separately, Our opinion 15 not modified m respect of this matier

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statermarts
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view In accordance with IFRSs, and for their compliance with applicable provision of the Dubai
Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021, and for such internal control as managermant
delefrmines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial staterments that are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or arrar,

Continged. .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
[oonfinued)

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends Lo liguidate
ihe Company or io cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to da so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
PrOCESS,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemeants

Ciur objectives are to obisin reasonable assurance about whether the financigl statements as a
whale are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that inclydes our opinion. Reasonable essurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantea that an =sudit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will abways detect’ @ material
misstatement when i exisls. Misstatemenis can arse from fraud or ermor and are considered
material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As parl of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the audit We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material mestalernent of the financisl statements, whether
dua to fraud or emor, design and perom avddt procedures responsive fo those risks, and
obtain audit evidenca that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material messtatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne
resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations. or tha override of internal contral.

= Obtain an undesstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design sudit
procedures that are appropnate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing
an opinion on the effectvanass of the Company's intermal contral.

» Evaluste the appropriateness of sccounting poficies used and the reasonablensss of
acoounting estimates and refated disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concem basls of
accounting and, based an the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
retated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
contnue as a going concern. If we conclude that @ material uncerainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report o the related disclosures in the financial
statements ar, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on e audit evidencs obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's report, However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cegae to continue as a going concam.

continued..
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{continued)

»« Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the fingncigl statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undertying transactions
and evenis in @ manner thal gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audd findings, including any significant
deficiencias in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We further confirm that the financial statements comply with the applicable provisions of the
Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regutations 2021

Far PKF

o

Partner

Auditor regisiration no. 5468
Duban

United Arab Emirates

19 May 2023
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

MHotes 2023 2022
AED AED
ASSETS
Mon-current assais
Property, plant and equipment B 559 1.816
Invesirments F| 3B 480,149 26,200 74T
Other financial assets G 18,941,283 26,103,064
57 422 D01 52404 727
Current assels
Inveniones g 3,519,103 £ BSE 600
Trade and other receivables 10 2,731,883 2,216,004
Dther curreni assels 11 131,426 104 319
Cue from & related party 12 9,572,270 1,325,109
Caontract aassis 13 1,690,118 254 070
Cther financial assets B i55, 000 1,428,322
Cash and cash equivalents 14 6,625,399 83,317
24,225 408 12078, T32
Total assets _ B1,647 407 B4 483,469
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity funds
Share capial 15 15,877,000 5,855,000
Share prenium 18 19,830,420 BET 440
Share application manay 17 14,775,948 £,017 200
Retained eamings ____ B,0s1,213 10,622 665
Total equity funds 58,534,581 27,385,295
Nan-¢urrent liabilities
Loans from sharshokder 18 17,701,527 7,464 927
Provision for staff end-of-service benefits 19 _ 7,221 151,034
17,772,748 7,505 961
Current liabilities
Loans from sharehalder 18 BE3,.0981 16,860 134
Due to related parties 12 1,138,631 2,564 208
Trade and other payables 3| 598,081 6,808, 289
Other cumrant liabdities 22 316,994 122 060
Contract liabilities 13 1,622,611 3047 422
4,340,078 29,502 203
Total liabliities 22,112,828 47,008, 164
Total equity and liabllities 81,647 407 64,483 459

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The report of the independent awditor is set forth on pages 1 10 3.

We confirm that we are responsible for thase financial statements, including selecting the accournting
policies and making the judgments underlying them. We confirm that we have made available all
relevant accouriting records and information for thair compilation,

Approved and aulhensad for issue by the shareholder on 12 May 2023 and signed on their behalf by
Ms. Shivani Agrawal,

For CLEANMAX SOLAR MEMA FZCO

bl ouBEAl - UAE

PO Bo 125376




CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Cther operaling income

Share of profit from an associale
Adminisirative expenses
Interast income

Finance costs

(LOSS)YPROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive Income:

Ciher comprahensive income for the year

Notes

24

25

26

27

28

28

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2023 2022
AED AED
32,725,579 41,596,737
{34,599,855) {37,793,418)
{1,874,276) 3,803,319
69,926 19,779
776,562 212,652
(1,462,776) (1,000.316)
1,686,720 851,125
{1,777,598) 13,085, 304)
(2,671,442) B41,285
(2.571,442) 841,295

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 o 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Bnlance af 1 Aprl 2021

Share applicalian money an
additonal shares

Allotrm@nt af sheres
Trensaciicn costs

Tatsd comprehansie Income for e
yEAF

Far walue adusiment dus io loss of
comtred fnote Tal(in

Balanor at 31 Mach 3073

Share applicabon monay an
additional shades

Allotment of 2hares
Trensastion coals

Tolsd comprefensive incame far the
year

Balance at 31 Manch 5023

Share
capital

AED

2,800,000

o (5 OO

6, 858000 BRT 440

16,61 & a0

16877000

Shans Shara Ratainad

promism application enrnings!
Moy |zccumulated
bosses)
AED AED AED

- 4,000,000 15803, 5400

- B0, 200 =
42,000 4,000,000} -
154, 550 = =

- - B34 295

=y = 15,605, 200

2,017 200 10622 656

- 5, THE, 740 -

TE0A9, 100 =
[FB. 1204 -
- - [EET] 443
189,530,420 14,775 S48 B 081,213

Tedml

AER

1. E06. 160

2017200

154,560

841,205

18 685 200

27286205

5,790, Td8

28,038 100

[¥6. 120,

The accompanying nates farm an integral part of these fingncial statements,
The repart of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)profit for the yaar
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interesl incomea
Finance costs
Share of profit from an Essociate
Provision for staff end-of-senvice benefits

Changes in;
- |mventaries
- Trade end other recaivables
- Other cufrent agsats
- Captract assets
- Trade and other payables
= Cither current liabifities
- Confract liabiities
Staff end-of-service benefits paid
Interest paid
Met cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in subsidiaries

(Payments iolreceipts from related parties {nat)
Loan repaid byf{lcan given to) a related party
Decreaseliincraase) in other financial assefs (net)
Interast recaived

Nat cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financial activities
Receipts from share application money
Payment of ransaction oosts

Payment of frust receipts (net)

(Repayment of loan to)lcan availed from shareholder (net)

(Payments to)frecespis from a related pany (net)
MNet cash from financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 14)

2023 2022
AED AED
[2,571,442) 841,295
1,357 1,415
(1,696,720) (891,125)
1,777,598 3,085 304
(T76,562) (212,692)
57 46 29,758
{2,208,343) 2,853 055
2,137,497 (5,441 793)
(831,625) {1.255,030)
127,118) BB, 303
(T26,245) [232,839)
(6,210,208) 3,501,185
184,934 25,478
(1,424,911) 2,883 748
(182,483) "
(1,885,171) (2,706,188
(12,163,681} T 303,257
(11,403,840) (5,212, 320)
(8,247 161) 18,768,131
7,161,771 (22 062,253)
1,074,322 [1,129,322)
2,012,456 22
(9,402,452} (9,654,773)
34,796,848 9,017 200
{76,120) (54 560)
- (675.528)
(5,852,000} 305,634
{1,360,513) 1,498,145
27,408,215 10,050,891
5,842 082 232 a5
683,317 450, 421
6,525,399 633,317

Tha accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The report of the independent auditor is set forth on pages 1 to 3.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

a)

b}

=l

&)

)

c}

LEGAL STATUS AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY

CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO (the ‘Company”) is a free zone Company with limited
liability incorporated in Dubail, United Arab Emirates under Implementing Regulation Mo. 1088
issped by the Dubai Airport Free Zone Authorily pursuant to Law Mo 2 of 10068 and its
amandment No. (2} of 2000 and amendment Law No. {25) of 2009 (repealed by Dubai Airport
Free Zone Authority Company Regulations 2021). The Company was registered on 23 May
2017 and commeanced s operations since than, The registerad address is 2E M032, Dubal
Ainport Free Zone, Dubai, LAE.

The Company's principal activity during the year was of solar energy systems & components
trading and power generation, transmission & distribution equipment

The parent and ultimate parent company is Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Ltd
India. The management and control are vested with Ms. Shivani Agrawal, Director and Mr
Kuldeep Jain, Director, Indian nationals. Mr. Kuldeep Jzin & the ultimate beneficiary owner of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial ststements are prepared in accardance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards issued or adopted by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
which are effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and the
requiremants of the Dubai Airport Free Zone Implementing Regulations 2021

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. The
consolidated financial staternents of the Company and its subsidiaries, which are required to
be presented in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standard 10° Consolidated
Financial Statements are presanted ssparately,

Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prapared using histoncal cost.

Hestorical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given to acquine the assat or
cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability.

Fair value is the price thatl would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction befween market participants at the measurement date

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis,

When preparing the financial statements, management makes an assessment of the
Company’s ability to continue a8 a going concern. Financial statemments are prepared on a
going concem bass unless management sither intends to liguidate the Company of to cease
aperations, or has no reslistic alternative but to do so.
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CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

o)

a)

Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards

Standards, amendmonts, improvements and inferpretations effective for the current year,

The following amendments, improvements and interpretations which became effective far
current period, did not have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements;

= Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds befare intendad use — Amendments to 1AS 9
= Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3
= Onerous Confracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract Amendments to 1AS 37
= Annual Improvements to IFES Standards 20182020
- |IFRS 8 Financial instrumeants
IFRS 16 Leases

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Repaorting Standards
- |AS 41 Agnculiure

New and revised IFRSS in issue but nof yet effective and not early adopted

The following amendments, improvements and interpretations that are assessed by
management &5 likely 10 have an impact on the financial statements, have bean issued by
the IASE prior 1o the date the financial staterments were authorsed for issue, but have not

been appiied in these financial staslemants as their effective dates of adoption are for future
accounting periods.

= Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Lisbilities as Current or Mon-current
{1 January 2023)

+ Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
i1 January 2023)

= Definiticn of Accounting Esfimates — Amendments to 1AS 8 (1 January 2023)

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams {"AED") which is also the Comparny's
functienal currency

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting pelicies adopted, and which have been cansistently applied, are
a3 Tollows.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecsation and
impairment losses. The cost less estimated residual value, where material, is depreciated
from the date the asset is available for use until it is derecognised, using the straight-line
methed ocwer the estimated useful lives of the assels a5 follows:

Fumiture, fixture and office equipment 2 Years
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o)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
assel as approprate only when i is probeble that fulure economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will fiow o the Company and such cost can be measured reiably.  Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment. When significant parts
of properly, plant and eguipment are reguired to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such pars as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accardingly. The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognised

All ather repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or lozs during the financial
pefiod in which they are incurmed

An assassment of depreciation method, useful lives and residual values is undertaken at
each reporting date and, where material, if there is a8 change in estimate, an appropriate
adjustrment is made to the depreciation charge.

Gains and losses on disposais are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount These are recognised within ‘other operating incomealadministrafive expenses’ in
prafit or kass

Impairment of tangible assets

At each reporting dale, the management reviews the camying amounts of its tangible asssts
to determine whether there is any Indication that those assats have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exisls, the recoverabla amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss if any. Where it Is not possible to estimate the
recovarable amourt of an individual azset, the acquirer estimaies the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount iz the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In
dssesang value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discountad to their prasant value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks spacific 1o the asset

It the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the ssset (cash-gensrating unit) is reduced to its
recaverable amount. An imparment loes Is recegnisad immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carriad at a revalued amount. in which case the imparment loss is treated as
@ revaluation decraasa.

Where an impairment loes subsequantly reverses, the camying amount of tha asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revisad estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased camying armount does nat exceed the camying amounl that would have bean
determined had no impairment loss been recognised lor the assel (cash-genarating unit) in
price years. A reversal of an impairment koss is recognisad immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revelued amount, in which case the reversal of the
Iimpairment 1085 is reated as a revaluation Increasa,

Pape 10 of 35



CLEANMAX SOLAR MENA FZCO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

c)

d}

2]

g

)

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities over which the Company exercises controd, Contral = achieved when
the Company is exposed, or has rights, to varable retum from ite imvolvernent with the
investae and has the abiity fo affect those relurns through its power over the investee.

The Investment in subsidiaries is accounted for at cost less impairment losses, if any,
Consolidated financial statements of the Company and s subsidigries are presented
separately

Investments in associates

Investments where the Company has significant influence bul not contral, generally
accompanying a8 shareholding between 20% end 50% of the share capital of the investes
Company, are treated as associstes and accounted for under the equity method of accounting
stating the investment initially at cost and adjusted for the Company's share of the changes in
net assets of the mvestes company after the date of acquisition, and for any impairment in
value.

Share application money

The amount received &5 application money for issuance of equity shares in future has been
classified as share application money under equity. Further, the fransaction costs relating to
additional shares issues deducted from the share application undear equity.

Share premium
The amount recedved in excess of the par vatue of equity shares has been classified as share

oremium under equity. Further, the fransaction costs relating to additional shares issues
deductad fram tha share premium under equity.

Inventories

Invenlaries are siated at the lower of cost and net reaksable value Cost is arrived at using
the Weighted Average Cost (WAC) method and comprises invoice valse plus applicable
landing charges less discounts, Met reglisable value i based on estimatad selling price less
any estimated cost of completion and disposal.

Goods-in-transit represents the inventory over which Company has legal fitle based on terms
of purchase, but which are physically nat received at the Company’s warehouse,

Staff banefits

The Company provides staff end-of-service benefits to its non-UAE national employess as
per ihe applicable local laws. The entitiement to thesa benafits is based on the employees’
last drawn salary and length of servicas which is accrued over the period of employment.
Provision for staff end-of-services benafits are disclosed s non-current liability,

Provision is also made for employeas’ entitemant to annual leave and air fare for eligible
employees as par the policy of the Company. Provision ralating to annual leave and air fare is
disclosed as current kabikty as employess are entitled to redeem these benefits at any pont
of time fier the reporting panod.
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o

Revenue recognition
The Company is in the business of solar enargy systems & componants trading and power
generation, fransmission & distribution equipment.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step modal
as zet cut in IFRS 15

1. Identdfy the contracts with customers: A confract is defined as an agreement between wo
or more pariies that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sats out the critena far
every contract thal must be met

2. |dentity the performance cbligations in the contract A performance cbligation & a
promise in @ contract with a customer to fransfer a service ta the customer,

3. Determine the transaction price; The fransaction price is the amount of consideration 10
which the Company expects io be entitled in exchange for fransferring promised senvices
1o 8 customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties

4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance oblfigations in the contract For @ contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allccate the fransaction
price to each performance obdgation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration
o which the Company expects fo be entiled in exchange for satisfying sach performanca
abgation

& Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation at a
poant in bme ar owver fime

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recogmses revanue over ime, if ona of
the following criferia is met

« The customer simultansously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

Company's performance as the Company performs; or

# The Company's performance creates of enhances an asset that the customer controls as

the asset s created or emhanced: or

« The Company's parformance does not create an asset with an altemative use o the

Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed bo date.

The Company is reqguired to assess each of its confracts with customars to detarmine whether
performance cbligations are salisfied over fime or at & point in time in order to determne the
appropriate methad of recognising revenus.

Sale of goods

The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of goods should be recognised at 8
point in Eme whien the control of the essat is trensferred to the customer, generally on
dalvery of the goods.
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I

k)

Construction contracts

Contract revenues are recognised over a pariod of time, based on the stage of complation of
the contract activity. Revenue i measured based on the proporion of confract costs
incurred for satisfying the performance cbligation to the iotal estimated contract costs

Coniract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity
Revenue is measured based on the proporton of coniract costs incurred for satisfying the
performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct relationship
batwaan the input and the productivity, Claims are accounted for as income when accapted
by the customer

Expected loss, if any, on confracts are recognisad as axpense in the pariod in which it is
foresesn, irespective of the stage of completion of the contract,

Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, dedations or changes are
approved sither fo the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for modifications of
conracts invohves assessing whether the services added o an existing contract are distinct
and whether the pricing i a standalone selling price. Services sdded that are not distinct are
accounied for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for
prospectively, either as @ separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
standalonge selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone seling price

Confract assets

A Contract =sset 8 the nght to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the
cugtomer. If the Company performs by transfering goods or services to a customer befare
the customer pays consideration or before payment iz due, a contract assel is recognised
from ihe egmed consideration thal is conditional. The contract assots are transfemed o
recel/able when tha rights become unconditional,

Contract liabilities

A contract habilty s the obligation to transfer goods or sanvices to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, @ contract liability is
recagnised when the payment is made or the payment s due (whichever is earfier]. Contract
lighitities are recognised as revenue when the Company performa under the contract.

Leases

As a lesses

The Company leases office premises. Rental contracts are typically annually but may have
extension options. Lease terms are negotialed on an individual basis and contain a wide
rarge of different terms and conditions
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n

o}

1]

Shon-ferm leases

The Company applies the shor-term lease recogniion exemption o its shori-tarm leases
(e, those leases that have a lease term of 12 monthe or lese from the commencement data
and do not contain a purchase ophon), Lease payments on short-term leases ara recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalenis compree cash on hand, bank balance in current accounts and
bank depositz free of encumbrance with & maturty date of three months or less from the date
of deposit.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are transkated inte UAE Dirhams at the rate of exchange
rulimg on the daie of the transactons.

Monstary aszets and liabllites expressed in foreign currencies are translated info UAE
Dirhams at tha rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

Gains or loeses resulting from foreign currency transactions are teken to profit or loss

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs ara recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incumed
excapt those thet are afinbutable to the acquestion and construction of an assei that
necessarily takes a substanbal period fo get ready for its intended use ("qualifying asset”)
Such borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the related qualifying asset up to the date the
qualifying asset is ready for use.

FProvisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a presant obligation {legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, i is probable that an outfiow of economic benefils will be requined
to sattle the obligation and a reliable estirmata can be made of the amount of the abligation,

The amount recognised &5 a provision 15 the best estimate of the consideration required to
seftie the present obligabion at the reporting date taking intc account the risks and
uncartainties surrounding the coligation, Where a provision s measured using the cash flow
estimated to setie the present chligation, i's carrying amount is tha present value of those
cash flows.

When some or all of the economic banafits required to seffle a provision are expacted to be

racoverad from a third parly, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of recelvable can be measured raliably.
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q)

&)

Contingencies and commitments

Contingent liabiities are not recognisad in the financial statements. Thay are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits i3 remote. A
contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an infiow of
economic banefits 15 probable,

Value added tax

Az par the Federal Decree-Law No. (03) of 2017, Value Added Tax (VAT), is charged at 5%
standard rate or 0% (a5 the case may be) on every taxable supply and deemed supply made
by the taxable person.

The Company charges and recovers Value Added Tax [VAT) an every taxable supply and
deamad supply, in accordance with the applicable commercial VAT laws. irecoverable VAT
far which the Company cannot avail the credit is charged ta the relavant expendilure category
or inciuded in costs of non-curment assets The Company also files its VAT returns and
compule the payable fax (which is oufpul tax less input tax) for the aliotted tax pericds and
deposit the same within the prescribed due dates of filing VAT return and tax payment, WaT
receivable and VAT payable are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position as the Company has a legally enforceable right to offsel the recagnised
amounts and has the intention to settls the sams on net basis

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents asseats and labilities in the statement of financial position based on
current'nan-current classificatan.

An assal & currant when it is:

+ Expaecfed to ba realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle.
* Hald primarily for the purpose of trading.
+ Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or,

» Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelva months after the reporting penod

Al other asaets are classified as nan-cumeant

A liability is current when;

s |tis expected to be settled in the normal oparating cycle.

o |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

= |tis dueto be selled within twehe months afler the reporting period, or,

«  Therg is no unconditional right fo defer the setbernant of the liability for st least twele
months after the reporting pericd

The Company classifies all other lisbilities as non-current,
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Financial instruments

Classification

On initial recognition, & financial assel s classified and measursd st amortised cost; fair
value through other comprehensive income ("FYTOCI™) — debt investment, FYTOC! — equity
investment, or fair value through profit or loss ("FYTPL").

The clagsification of financial assets at initial recognilion depends on the financial assels'
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.

In arder for a financial assel to be classified and measured at amorntised cost ar FYTOCH, it
needs to give rise to cash fiows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) an
the principal amount outstanding This assessment is referred 1o as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrumental level,

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers o how it manages its
finencial assets in order o generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cashfiows, selling the financial assets, or
both,

Financial liabilities are classifled as financial liabikties at FYTPL or 8t amorised cast The
Company determires the classification of its inancial Eabilites at initial recognition.

Recognition

Financial assets and financial fiabilties are recognised when, and anly when, the Company
becomss & party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales
of financial @ssels are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the assat.

Derecognition

Financsal assets are de-recognised when, and only when,

= The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire or

« The Company has trensfermed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without materfal delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(&l the Company has ransferned substantially &ll the risks and rewards of the asset,

ar

ib) the Company has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the risks and
reswards of the assat, but has transferred contral of the assel.

Financial labilities are de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished La_, when
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or axpired.

Measurement
A financial esset (unless it is a trade recaivable without a significant financing component that
i& initially measured ai the transacton prica) is intally measured at fair value pius, for an item
net at FVTPL. fransaclion costs that are directly atfributable to its acquisition. Transactions
costs of financial assets carned at FYTPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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The following accounting palicies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets
and liabilrbes,

Financial assels al amortised cosi
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amartised
cost less impaimment loss, if any, using the effective interest method.

1. the asset is held within 3 business model whose objective is o hold assets in order o
callect contractual cash fiows: and

Z. the contraciual terms of the instrument give rse to cash flows on spacified dates that are
solely payments of prncipal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

Al olher financial assets are subseguently measured at fair valua

Interest income, foreign exchange gaing and [osses and Impalrmant lossas are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or lass

The financial assets at amonlised cost comprise of ofher financial assets, tfrade and ather
receivables, due from a related party and cash and cash equivalents.

Finarncial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
mterast method or at FVTPL,

Financial lsabilites at amortised cost comprise of trade and other payables, due to related
parties and loans fraom shareholder

Impairment of financial assets

Tha Company recognises an allowance for expected credt losses (ECLs) for investments in
all debt instruments not held at fair value through proft or loss, ECLs are based an the
differance batween the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash fiows that the Company expecis fo receive, discounted at an approvmation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of caliateral held or other credit enhancaments that ara intagral fo the contractual terms.

Loss allowances are measured on either of the following basis;

- 12-month ECLs: ECLs that result from possible default events within 12 manths after the
reparting date; and

- Lifetime ECLs: ECLs that result fram all passible default events over the expected ke of &
financial instrument

The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount agual to lifetime ECLs, axcspt for
the following which are measurad as 12-month ECLs;
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- Bank balances, other financial assets, due from a related parly and other receivables for
which credit risk (Le., the risk of default ocouming over the expected life of the financial
mistrument) has not increased significantly since initiai recognition.

The Compary has elected to measure loss sllowances for trade receivables and coniract
assets al an amourt equal to lifelime ECLs, The Compary applies a simplified approach in
calculating expected credd losses. The Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting
date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on iis historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for farward-looking factors specific to the debfors and the economic
environmant.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significanily since
imifial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasorable and
supportive Information that is relevant and avadable without undue cost or effort. This
Includes both guantifative and qualtative information and analysis, based on the Company's
historical expenence and informed credit risk assessment and inciuding forward looking
infarmation

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantty if it
i% mare than 50 days past dusa,

The Company considars 3 financial asseat to be in default when:

— The customer is unlikely fo pay ifs credit obligations to the Company in full, withaut
recourse by the Company o actions such as realising security (if any is heid), or

— The financial asset & more than 350 days past due,

The maximum period considered when estimaling ECLs is the maximum confractual period
over which the Company is exposed o credit risk.

At each repaorting dete, the Company aszasses whether financial assets camied at amortised
cost arg credil-impaired. A financial asset B8 'credif-impaired’ when ang or more events that
have a datrimental impact on the estimated fulure cash flows of the financial assats have
Docurred.

Loss allowances for financial assels measured at amorti=sed cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assat

Offsetting

Financial assats and labilites are offset and the net amount reporied in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognisad amounts
and there i3 an intention o gattle on a nat basis, or realise the asset and settie the liability
simultanaously.
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u

Equity
Share capital s recorded at the value of proceeds receivedireceivable towards interest in
ghare capital of the Company,

Fair value measuremeant
The Company discloses the fair value of financsal instrurments measured at amortised cast

The fair value is the price that would be recesved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lisbility
in-an arderly transaction betwean markst pariicipants &t the measurement date. The fair value
measurement i5 based on the presumption that the transaction to sall the assel or ransfer the
liability takes place gither

= |nthe principal market for the asset or Rability or
* |n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markel for the ageal or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that the market
participants would use when pricing the =esat or lisbifity, assuming that the market
partcipants act in their best economic interesis

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS EMPLOYED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant
effect on the amounis recognisad in the financial statements are as follows;

Classification of financial assets
The classfication of financial assets at inifial recognition depends on the financial aseal's
contraciual cash fiow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them

Impairment

At each reporfing date, management conducts an assessment of property, plant and
equipment to determine whether thera are any indications that they may be impaired, In the
absance of such indications, no further action Is taken. If such indications da exist, an
analysis of each asse! i undertaken to determine its net recoverable amount and, if this is
below its carrying amount, a provision is made

The Company applies expectad credit loss (ECL) model to measure |oss allowancs in case of
financial asseis on the basis of 12-month ECLs or Lifetime ECLs depanding on credit risk
characteristics and how changes in ecenormic factors affect ECLs. which are determined on a
probabikty-weighted basis

Investments in subsidiaries
Managemen! considers that it has de-facto contrel over Sunroofs Envire Seolar Energy
Systems LLC even though it doss not hald the voting rights. The invesiment is made by the
Company through one of its directors, who is acting 83 & nominee shareholder on behalf of
the Company. Therae i no history of other sharsholders forming a group to exercise their
votes collectively
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Recognition of revenue and allocation of lransaction price

identificetion of perdformance obligations

The Company determined that the sale of goods and services & provided as a single
component to customers and accordingly It becomes single parfformanca obligation in respect
of the goods being soid,

Daterming fming of salizfaction of performance chiigalion

The Company concluded that the revenue from sales of goods i to b recognized at a point
in time when the conirol of the goods has transferred to the customers, Payment of the
transaction price is due immediataly at the point the customer purchases the goods.

The Company concluded that the revenue from construction projects and operations and
managemeant sarvicas is to ba recognised over time as the customer simultanecusly receves
the bensfit as the Company performs.

5 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Key assumptions made concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporiing date that have a significant rsk of causing @ matenal adjustment o the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities withen the next financial year, are as follows:

Carrying values of property, plant and equipment

Residual values are assumed to be rera unless a reliable estimate of the current value can be
obiained for similar assets of ages and conditions that are regsonably expected to exist at the
end of the assets’ estimated useful lives,

impairment
Assessments of nel recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipmant are basad on
assumptions regarding future cash flows expected to be received from the related assets,

Impairment of financial assets

The loss aliowance for financial assets are based on assumptions aboul the risk of default
and expacied loss rates. The managemant uses judgament in making thase assumptions and
selecting the inputs o the imparment calculations based on the past history, esisting market
conditions s well as forward looking estimates al the end of gach reporting pencd. Details of
the key assumptions and inpuls used are disclosed in nofe 3 (t)

Staff end-of-service beneafits

The Company computes the provisian for the liability to staff end-of-service benefits stated at
AED 71,221 (pravious year AED 131,034}, assuming that all employees were lo leave as of
the reporfing date The management s of the opinion that no significant difference would
have arisen had the liabiity been calculated on an aciuarial basis as saltary inflation and
discount rafes are ikely (o have approximately equal and opposite effects.
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)

Contract vartations and claims

Variations orders are accounted for prospectively based on the nature and price of additional
products and services requested through the variation orders. During the year ended
31 March 2023, no amouni of claim recognised as par of the revenue (previous year

AED Nil).

The Company includes varable consderation (including claims, re-measurable contracl
values and discounts) in the bransaction price to which It expects 10 be entiled from the
inception of the contract. The amount of variable considaratian is rastrictad to the extent that it
Is highty probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the varable consideration is subsaq uently

resalved,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
AL 1 April 2021
Cepraciation

At 31 March 2022
Depreciation

At 31 March 2023

Carrying amaunt
At 1 April 2021

At 31 March 2022
At 31 March 2023

INVESTMENTS

Investment in an associate

CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZC0, Dubai

Fair value adjustmant due to loss of contral
Shara capital st cost!

Share of comprehansive income (cumulative)

Fage 21 of 35

Furniture,
fistures and

office equipment
AED

7,069

3. 738
1,415
5,153
1,357
T 8s0

3,33
1.916
559

L2023 2022
AED AED

15,585,200 15 885,200
180,000 180,000
989,254 212 682

16,854,454 16,077 852
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(i

(a)

B)

4

In previous year, CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO has issued additional shares to other
parties and due to which the Company has lost its controf over the subsidiary (shareholding
of the Company changed from 77% 1o 36% with effect from 7 October 2021). Hence, the
Company had de-recognised the investment in the subsidiary and recognised investment in
an associate. Investment in an associate is recognised at far value. Gain arising out of
recognition of investment in an associate was recorded in the retained eamings.

The nature of Investment in an associate s as follows:

Name of associata Principal activity Country of  Proportion (%) of
incorporation ownership interest
2023 el
, Salar ensngy
i ] 6%
Cieanhax Alpha LeasaCo FZC0 syikeivi Pantel UAE 3 6%

Aggregatad summary financial information relating to the associates are as follows:

2023 2022

AED AED
Assate 132,673,214 498,651,743
Liabilities B4.477,164 52,752,814
Revenue 12 887 693 ¥ 248 318
Profit 2167121 1,572,574
Met assets of an associate 48,096,050 45 938 029
Interest in an associate 36% 36%
Share of profit from an associate 776,562 212,602
Investment In subsidiaries
sunroofs Enviro Solar Enargy Systems LLCH 147,000 147,000

The investment is made by the Company through one of its directors. wha s actng as
nominee shareholder on behalf of the Company. The Company does not hald any share
capital directly i Sunroofs Enviro Solar Energy Systems LLG ("the subsidiary), however the
Caompany is able e exercise de-facto control over he subsidiary.
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ey Investment in whaolly owned subsidiaries incorporated in Thailand

20,998 shares of THB 100 each converted §@ THE 1 =
AED 0.113 in Cleanmax IHQ (Thailznd) Company
Limited, Thailand

2,598 shares of THB 1,000 each convened § THE 1 =
AED 0.11%8, 12,500 shares of THE 1,000 each fuilly
paid up @ THE 152 46 each converied @ THE 1 =
AED 01018, 27.600 shares of THE 1,000 each fully
paid up @ THE 749,10 each converted @ THEB 1 =
AED L1018 and 135,000 shares of THE 1.000 partial
each paid up @ THE 138.18 each converted & THE 1
= AED 0.1034 and 255400 shares of THB 1,000
partial paid up @ THE 250 each converted (@ THE 1 =
AED 01030 in Cleanmax Energy (Thailand) Co., Lid,,
Thailand (previous year 2958 shares of THE 1,000
each canverted @ O 1199 and 12.500 shares of THE
1.000 {partial paid up @ THB 837.54) each convartad
@ THB 1 = AED 0.1202)

245 shares of THE 100 sach converted @ THB 1=
AED 0.08847 in Cleanmax Engineering {Thailand)
Company Limited

2023 2022

AED AED

1,128,258 1,128,258
20,348,043 E 8485 507
2,394 =
21,478,695 10,074,855

The nature of investments in subsidiaries controlled by the Company are as follows:

Name of swbsidiany Principal Counitry of Propartion (%) of Proportion (%) of
activities incompomation legal ownership Beneficial
interest awnership interest
023 2022 o2y 2022
Sunronls Envirg Solar Enesgy Electrical fitting condracling LIAE - - - -
Syeterms LLC (refer nots TOMI and solar anargy system
installation
Cleanmax [HQ {Thailand) Business mansgerment and Thaailsnd g4 100 100 100
Comgany Limied, Thaiand aeneral senice
Cleanmax Energy (Thakand} Co.,  Engaged in production, Thailand ) 100 100 100
Lid , Thaiand zaeambly, detribution and
rranagemand services to build
a power plan
Cleanmax Engneering (Thakand}  Buginess managemarnt Thailznd 41 - 100 i
Corrpany Limiled consulting and general serice
Total (a+b+c) 38,480,149 26,2989 T47
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2023 2022
AED AED
B, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Long-term loan to related partiesis 18,941,293 26,103,064
Other financial assets at amortised cost:
- Moargin deposits io 55.000 1,129,322
18,996,293 27,232 386
Disclosed under:
Mon-currant financial aseets 18,941,293 26,103 0B84
Current firgncial assets 65,000 1,128 322
18,996,203 37 232 388

(8)  Areconciliation of the movements in the long-term loans to related parties:

Opening balance 26,103,064 4,020:811
Amount converted from due from a refated party into

lsam armaurt - 10,101,174
Loan given during the year 8,366,310 11,681,078
Loan repak] during the vear (16,528.080) -
Closing balance 18,841,254 26103084

Interast receivables from the above loans amounting to AED 584411 (previous year
AED 890 1327 is reclassified under other receivables,

(b)  This represents loan given to CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO which |5 an associale
AED 14,524,857 (pravious year AED 24 883 674) and Cleanmax |HQ (Thailand) Company
Lirmited which is a subsidiary AED 4,016,426 (previous year AED 1,219,390). Bath these loans
are unsecured and loan given to CleanMax Alpha LeaseCo FZCO is without a fixed
repayment schedule. These loans carry a 6% p.a. rate of interest (pravious year 5% p.a.).

e}  Represents deposits amounting to AED 55000 (previous year AED 1,120,322), held as
secunty against bankers' letter of guaraniee issued by the Company (refer note 31).

2023 2022
AED AED
8 INVENTORIES
Project materials 3,320,494 1,049 890
Goads-in-transit 188,608 4,608,710
3,619,103 5,556,600
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10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade recesvables
Dinar raceivables

2023
AED

1,993,781
738,112

2,731,893

2022
AED

1,316,872
898,132

2.216,004

The Company does not hoid any colleteral against rade receivables {previous year AED Nil).

An age anahrsis of rade receivables as foll

Mot past due
0 - 90 days past dus
More than 180 days past dus

11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Advance o vendars

12. RELATED PARTIES

CWED

1,887,722 1,316,872
6,055 -
1,993,781 1,316,872
97,752 50,174
33,834 54136
139,426 104,310

The Compary entérs info transachons with entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as contained in Intermational Accounting Standard 24. The management considers such
fransactions to be In the noral course of business and are at prices determined by the

managemeant,

Related paries comprise the parent company, subsidieries, sssociate, directors and key

management parsannel,

At the reporting date, significant balances with related parties were as follows;

Parent Subsidiaries
company
AED AED
Irestments - 21 B25 6805
- 10,221,655
Long-term Ipan 1o

related paries - 4016426
- 1,218,300

D fram & related
party - o572 2T0
1,045 608

Associate

AED

16 854 aha
16,0077 BE2

14 524 BGT
24 BRI BT4

275411
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Total
2023

AED

A8,480 145

18,941 293

8572270

Todal

LA F)

AED

26,299,747

26,103,084

1,325,109
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Chue to related
partiss

Logns from
shareholder

Guaranies recaehed

Provision for staff
and-of-genace
banefit

Farant
Company

AED

548277
2,564,268

18,365, 4568
24,425,061
T.250,000
7,350,000

Subsidiaries  Associate

AED AED

313,355 -

Koy

management

parsonal
AED

278,000

8.1E6
131,034

Total
2023

AED

1,138,531

18,365 488

7,350,000

H,1EE

Al balances are unsecured and are expectad to be settled in cash except for the
received. Repaymeant and other f@rms are sat out in notes 5,12 and 30.

Zignificant fransactions with related parties during the year were as follows:;

Revenus
Direct costs

Expenses recharged 1o
a related party

Expenges racharged
frarin @ relabid party

Tranafer of alaff and-
of-garvica benefits
payable {note 18)

Staff costs and other
benefis

Stall end-ol-servios
benehis

IFberst incodneg

Finance cosis

Parent
Eampany

AED

22 204 054
4,008 453

1,670,256
ard

Bubsidiaries MAssociate

AED AED
13,603,542 -
50, O 239 -

3,051,365 =

1.584 514 -

B4 35
B82.055 105,434

15172 641,707

7.415 =
- 55,254
1,688,720 -
BE4 Do 37,031
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Directon
Kay

management
parsonne|

AED

505,808
353,344

23 447

Taotal
2023

AED

13,603,642

25,305,429

584,185

2,327.326

65,254

505,999

23,447

1,686,720

1,498,686

Todal
2022

2 664,288

24,425,081

T, A60000

131,054

guarantess

Todal
2022

AED
38,089,231

5,583,083

TBE 400

iy

353244

28,788
891,125

2,286 8040
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The Company also provides funds tofreceves funds from refated parfies as working capital
facilifies at fived rates of interest. Cerfain administrative related services are avaled from a

related party as per agreed rates

13. CONTRACT ASSETS/ICONTRACT LIABILITES
Contract assets relating to costs mcumad Lo fulfil

contract

Disclosed as:
Current contract assets

Contract kabilities

Dizclosed as:
Current contract lEabilities

14, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Casah on hand

Bank balances in current accounts

15 SHARE CAPITAL
Issued and paid up:

18,877 shares of AED 1,000 each {previous year
8,858 shares of AED 1,000 each)

Hame

Chean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Lid

2023 2022

AED AED
1,690,315 054, 070
1,620,315 BE4 070
1,622,811 3047 422
1,622,511 3047 422
34,006 411
6,481,283 aas a0a
6,525,388 B&3.31T
16,877,000 6,658,000
MWo. of shares AED
16,877 16,877,000

(a) Wide an amendment ta the Memorandum of Aszociation dated 7 March 2023, the Company
has increased the share capital by issuing 10,018 fully paid-up shares to Cleaniax Enviro
Energy Solutions Private Ltd. The shareholders at the reporting date and their interesis as at
that date in the sharae capital of the Company were as follows:

Hame At 31 March 2023 At 31 March 2022
Mo of AED % of % of Mo, of AED % of % of
Shares holding  profit  Shares holding  profit
sharing sharing
Cl=aribax Enviro EI‘I!rg]' 16,877 16877000 A00% 1003 BAS3 B,B58.000 AR 10059
Salutons Pravate Lid
T 16ATT 6858 6656000  100% 100%

15,877,000  100% 1080%
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16.

(@)

(&)

(c}

(d)

L

18.

(&)

2023 2022
AED AED
SHARE PREMIUM
Opening balange™ 2AT 440 —
Premium on additicnal shares issued during the
it e 18,018,100 842,000
Transaction costs (76, 120) (54, 560)
Closing balance 19,830,420 T BET.440

Share premium of AED 887,440 (net transaction cost of AED 54,560} arsing out of initial
paymant of 1,308 shares amounting to AED 308 issued during the year ended 31 March
2022;

Share premium of AED 6136000 [net ransacton cost of AED B,334) arming ocul of
2,879 shares amounting to AED 3,131 issued during the year ended 31 March 2023;

Share premium of AED 3288000 (net btransaction cost of AED 41,257) arsing out of
1,543 shares amounting fo AED 3,137 issued during the year ended 31 March 2023

Share pramium of AED 9524000 (net transaction cost of AED 28,529) arising out of
5,587 shares amounting to AED 2,714 issued during the vear ended 31 March 2023,

2023 2022

AED AED
EHARE APPLICATION MONEY
Opening balance 8,017,200 4 000,000
share application money on additional shares 34,796 B48 8,017,200
Allatmant of shares {29,038,100) {4,000, 000)

14,775,348 8017200

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDER™
Opening balance 24,425,061 23,740,292
Raceipts during the year {nat) 14,000,000 301 527
Interast credited 1,496,686 2,386 a09
Intarest paid {1,608,258) (2,017 874)
Loan paid during the year {19,952,000) (3,395.883)
Closing balance 18365488 2 24 425061

This represants interest beanng loans received from sharehokder with a maturily of threa
years from the date of receipt of loans as at reporiing date. Loans amounting of
AED 664 982 is repayable within a8 year and subject to Interest rate at 10% p.a. and
remaining loan 3 repayable after a year and subject o interast rate n the range of % p.a.
o 10% p.a.
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14,

20.

21

22:

23,

2023 2022
AED AED
Disclosed under:
Mon-current portsan 17,701,627 7464927
Current portion 663,981 16,560,124
18,365 488 24 425 061
PROVISION FOR STAFF END-OF-SERVICE-BENEFITS
Opening balance 131,034 101,235
Prowvigion for the year 67 426 289,750
Transfer from a related party 65,254 e
Paid during the year {182,433) -
Closing balance 21 131,034
BANK FACILITIES

Bank facilties from Mashreq Bank are secured by financial bank guarantee of

AED 7,360,000 received from parent company.

The bank borrowings are subject to certain financial covenants such as minimum maonthly

account turnaver routing (excluding any TR/ LBO credits) of AED 500,000.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade pavables 445 440 6. 532 196

Aconials 152,641 276,083
698,081 6,808,289

The entire trade and ather payables are due for payment in one year

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

VAT payable (net) 316,994 51,155

Empioyee related payables - 70,905
316,854 122,080

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company's objectves when managing capital are to ensure that the Company conlinues
as a going concem and to provide the sharekolder with a rate of return on its investment
commensurate with the level of risk assumed.

Capital which is unchanged from the previous year, comprises equity funds as presented in
the stgtement of financial position along with ioans from the sharsholder and amounts due
toffrom related parties. Dabt comprises total amounts owing to third parties, net of cash and
cash equivalents
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24

The Company is subject 1o externally imposed capital requirements as per provisions of the
bank facilites avafed. The Company hes complied with all the capital requiremenis to which it
is subject.

Funds ganerated from internal accruals together with funds received from a related party net
of funds provided to related parties are retained in the business according to the business
regquirements to maintain the capital at desred levels.

REVENUE

The Company generates revenue from the fransfer goods and services over fime and al a
point m Gme. The disaggregated revenue from confracis with customars by gecaraphical
segments, type of services and timing of revenue recognition is presented below. The
maragement beteves that this best depicis the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of ihe

Company's revenue and cash flows

2023 2022
AED AED
Primary geographical segments
LIAE 32,046,542 41 506,737
Thailand 810,548 e
- Bahrain 68,482 -
32,725,579 41,586,737
Major good/service lines
Constructionfinstallation projects
Solar equipment instaliation 8,303,614 2411164
Sale of goods
- Sale of goods 24,254,022 39,088,232
Operation and maintenance
- Operation and maintenance 167,943 85,341
32,725,578 41 595 737
Timing of revenue recognition
At @ point in time 24,421,965 39,185,573
Dver time 8,303,614 2,411,184
12,725,579 41,508,737
25 DIRECT COSTS
Purchase of project materials 36,038,073 35,684,478
Other direct costs 1,832,386 2,158 330
316,870 459 28 E43 308
Changes in inventaries (2,270,604) (1,02 520}
34,509,856 37793418
26. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Forgign exchange gain (net) 51,362 _
Other miscellaneocus income 8,564 189,779
69,926 19,779
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27

(a)

28.

29,

30,

2023 2022
AED AED

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benafite= 811,108 353 344
Staff end-ol-service bensafits 57 426 29 795
Ehort-lerm lease expengeas 35,003 35,128
Marketing expenses 84,138 50,218
Commizsion and referral feas 125,809 145,092
Professional fees B, 291 21,810
Travel expenses 33470 22,085
Insurance charges 58,941 42 128
Bank charges 8,401 T.822
Aupdil fees 41,500 vd B0
Depreciation (note §) 1,357 1415
Fargign exchangs loss {net) - 122,832
Dther expenses 99,674 93,043

1,462,776 1,000,216
It mcludes director's remuneration of AED 805,595 {previous year AED 353 344)
INTEREST INCOME
On loan ta related partes 1,696,720 891,125
FINAMCE COSTS
On leans from sharsholder 1,498 686 2,395 809
CHher finance costs 275,345 BES 679
On bank overdrafts 3,667 1.8916

1,777,598 3.085 304

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Fimancial instruments
Classiflcatlon and fair valuas

The net carrying amounts as at the reporting date of finarcial assete and financial lizbilities

are as follows;

Financial assets

Otiver financial assets (current and non-
current)

Trade and other receivebles

Cue from a related party

C-ash and cash equivalents

At amortized cost

2023 2022

AED AED
18,996,293 27,232 385
2,731,893 £.216,004
8,572,270 1,325,108
6,525,399 B83,317
37,825,855 31,456 816
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At amortised cost

2023 2022

AED AED
Financial Habilities
Trade and other payables 588,081 &, 808 289
Due fo related parties 1,138,631 2,584 298
Loans from sharahokler
{current and non-currant} 18,265,488 24,425, 061

20,102,100 T 33707848

Fair valve measurement and disclosures
The management assesses the fair values of all its financial assets and financial liabilities at
each reporiing date.

The fair values of cash and cash eguivalents, trade and other receivables, due from a related
party, other financial assets (current), trade and clher payables and des 1o related parties
approximate their carymng amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these
insirumenis

The followng methods and assumptions were used to determine the far values of other
financial esseis/liakilifies:

Narn-current financial assets sre evaluaied by the Company using valuation techniquss. The
inpuis fo these models are taken from cbser/able markets where possible, bul whene this s
ot feasible inputs are based on parameters such as interest rates, specific couniry risk
factors, individual credit worthiness of the customers and credit risks charactesistics. As at the
reparting date, the carmying amounts of such raceivables, net of pravisions, are not materially
differant from their fair valuas.

Fair values of loans from shareholder are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debis on similar itams, credit sk and remaining maturities. As at
the reporting date, the carrying amount of such Ekiity, is not materally different from ifs fair
value,

Financial risk management

Risk management objectives

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities bul i managed through a process of ongoing
identfication, measurement and monitoring, subject to rsk limits and other confrals. This
pracess of rsk management i@ crtical o the Company's continuing profitabilty. The
Company's risk management focus=es on actively securng shor to medium term cash flows
by menirmizing the exposure to financial markets

The management conducts and operates the business in & prudent manner, taking inic
account the significant risks to which the business is or could be exposed
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The primary risks to which the business |s exposed, which are unchanged from the previous
year, comprise credit nsks, iquiddy risks and market risks {including currency risks, cash flow
interazt rate risks and fair value interast rale risks).

The management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
rsks which are summarised below;

Crodit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an abligation
and cause thi other party to incur a financial loss

Credit risk |s managed by assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers and the
potential for axposure to the market in which they operate, combined with regular monitoring
and follow-ugp.

Financial assets that polentizily expose the Company to concentrations of cradit risk comprise
principally bank accounts, trade and other recevables, amounts due from a related party, loan
to related paries and margin deposits

The Company's bank accounts and margin deposits are placed with high credit quality
finamcial institutions,

The management assesses the credit risk arising from trade and other receivables, amounts
due from a related party and loan to relaled parties taking into account their financial position,
past experience and othar faciors. Based on the assessment individual risk limits are
determined.

Amounts due from a refated parly relate to transactions arising in the normal course of
business with minimal credit risk.

AL the reporting date 95% of trade receivables was due from fwo customers situated in the
UAE {previous year 1005% dus from a custormer situated in the UAE).

Al lhe reporling date 100% of due from a related party are due from a related party (previous
year 98% dues from two related parties),

At the reporling date, there i no significant concentration of credit risk from any paricular
industry @3 the Company's customers are from diverse indusines

The Company uses an allowance matrix 1o measure the expacted credit losses of trade
receivables and contract assets. Loss rates are calculated using & flow rate’ method based
an the probability of a recevable progressing through successive stages of delinguency to
write-off Flow rates are calculated separately for expasures in different segments based on
the following common credit risk characteristics — geographic region, age of customer
refationship and type of product purchased,
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Based on the assessment, the management believes that no impairment provision i requred
under IFRS 2,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in mesting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturites of financial assets and financial liabiliies,

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wil
always have sufficient liguidity o meel ilz liabilities when dus, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without #ncurfing unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the malurity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company limits its
iquidity risk by ensuring adeguate bank facilities are availabile.

The table below summarnses the maturities of the Company's undiscounted financal liabiities
al the reporting date, based on contractual payment dates and current market intarast rates

Less than one year Cine to five years Total

2023 Mz 2023 2022 2023 2022

AED AED AED AED AED AED
Trade and other
paysbios 598,081 B,B0B,285 - - 508,081 5,808,280
Due to relsted parties 4,438,531 2 5&d 293 - o 1,138,531 2 854 208
Loans Tram
sharaholdar 663,961 16,980,134 17,701,527 7464027  18.365488 24,425 061

2400573 26332721 17,701,527 7464027 20,102,900 33,797,648
Markel risk

Marked risk is the risk that the changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and prices, will affect the Company's income or tha value of its holdings of
financial instrument. The objective of market rigk management is 1o manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returns.

Currency rigk
Currency risk is the risk that the values of financial instrumenis will fluctuste because of
charmges in foreign exchange rates,

There ara no significant currency risks as substantially all financial assets and financial
liabslities are dencminated in UAE Difham or US Dollar fo which the Dirham is fived, except for

the: fallowing:
2023 2022
AED AED
Cash and bank balances
British Pound Stecling 3,540 3,854
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L

32,

33

Interest rate rigk

Interest rate risk iz the risk that the valug of fnancial instruments will flucluate because of

chamges in market infareat rates.

Loan 1o related paries and loans from shareholder are subject to fixed inferest rates at levels
genavally obtained in the UAE and are therefore axposed to fair wvalue inerest rate risk,

2023
AED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Unutilisea baiances of commercial letters of cradit -
Bankers' letter of bank guaraniee [note 8 {g)] 3,541,583
3,541,583

2022
AED

583,923
1,128,322

1,713,250

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Previous year's flaures have been regroupediteclassified whersver necessary o make tham

comparaiis io those of the curment pariod.

CORPORATE TAX

On 8 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance issusd the Federal Decres-Law Mo, (47}
of 2022 intsoducing Corporate Tax, effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 June
2023. The rale of corporate t2x is 9% on the taxable income sxseeding AED 375,000 and 0%
for qualitying free zone companies on their qualifying Income. subject to maeting specified
canditions. There ¢ ne impact of thie law on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2023 Management will assess the implications of this Federal

Corporate Tax for the Company in due course

For CLEANMAX SOLAR MEMA FZCO

DIRECTOR

-

DAY
DR - AR

el F Boc 126378
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